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CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Mission Statement 

MISSION 

We are conznzittecl to providing excellent city services that 
enhance the qzralily of l$e for the Lawrence comnzrmity. 

VALUES 

In order to,fL~IJill our mi.ssiolz, we have established several grridelirzes: 

We ars committed to these busicprir~ciples: 

Integn'ty 
Courtesy 
Fairness 
Hoize.stv 

How we get the job done is us important as getting the job done. 

Ozrr ilzteractiolz with the conzmrmi@ will be projessional, 
responsive, direct. personal, curing and rzppropriate. 

We willpromote teamwork, employee satisfaction 
and proJEssiona1 developnzent in order to 

provide innovative, cost-efective, eficient service. 
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April 30,2010 

To the Citizens of Lawrence: 

The Co~nprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Lawrence for the 
year ended December 31, 2009 is hereby submitted. The report was prepared by the 
Finance Department, whiclch is responsible for the accuracy of the data and the 
completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures. Ui~less waived 
by the local goven~~nent, ICansas Statutes require that the financial statements be 
presented in conformance with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and be 
audited in accordance with geiterally accepted auditing staichdards by a firm of licensed 
certified public accounta~~ts. 

The report coilsists of management's representations concerning the finances of the City 
of Lawrence. The City has established a comprehensive set of internal coichtrols that is 
designed to protect the governrneicht's assets from loss and to compile sufficient reliable 
information for the preparation of the financial statements. Because the cost of internal 
colitrols should not exceed the benefits, iilteinal controls are designed to provide 
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free from 
material misstatemeilt. As management, we assert tliat, to the best of our knowledge and 
belief, this financial report is conlplete and reliable in all material respects. 

The fillancia1 statements have beell audited by Lowenthal, Webb and Odermann, a firm 
of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to 
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of t l ~ e  City of Lawrence for the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009 are free of material misstatement. The independent 
audit involved examining, 011 a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and 
disclosures in the fina~lcial statements; assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management; and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation. The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a 
reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Lawrence's 
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2009, are fairly presented in 
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first 
coinponeicht of the financial section of this report. 

The independeilt audit of the financial stateinents of the City of Lawrence was part of a 
broader, federally mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs for federal 
grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit eichgagements require the 

oBr p @ We are committed to providing excellent city services that enhance the quality of life for the Lawrence Community 
@++ 



independent auditor to report not only 011 the fair presentation of the financial statements, 
but also on the audited govennnent's internal controls and compliance with legal 
requirements, with special e~npliasis 011 internal co~ltrols and legal require~nents involving 
the ad~ninistration of federal awards. These Single Audit reports are part of this repomt. 

GAAP requires that n~anagemeilt provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis 
to accompany the basic financial statements in the foiln of Management's Disc~~ssion and 
Analysis (MD&A). This letter of trailsinittal is designed to complement MD&A and 
should be read in coi~junction with it. The MD&A section can be found inlmediately 
following the report of the independent auditors. 

Profile of the City 

The City of Lawrence was founded in 1854 as a project of the New Eilglaild Emigrant 
Aid Society. The City is located thirty-eight miles west of Kansas City, Missouri, and 
twenty-five miles east of Topeka, the state capitol. In addition, Lawrence is home to the 
University of Kansas, which is the largest local employer. The City encompasses 
approximately 3 1.3 square miles and had an estimated population in 2009 of 91,156. 

The City of Lawrence has operated under the Commission-City Manager form of 
government since 1951. The five member Commission is elected at large to either a two 
or four year tenn. Each year the Co~nmission chooses one of its members to serve as 
Mayor. The Commission is responsible for policy making, passing ordinances, adopting 
the budget, appointing committees, and hiring the City Manager. The City Manager is 
responsible for the day-to-day operations of the City and for hiring personnel. 

The City provides a full range of services which include police and fire protection, 
construction and maintenance of infrastructure, coininunity development and planning, 
and recreational and cultural activities. The City also operates both the water and 
wastewater utilities. In addition, the City provides both residential and commercial 
sanitation services to its citizens. The Lawrence Public Library, Lawrence Ho~~siilg 
Authority, and Lawrence Memorial Hospital are considered component units of the City 
of Lawrence and thus have financial infollnation included in this report. 

The annual budget provides a foundation for financial planning and control. The City 
must submit its annual budget to the State of Icansas prior to the end of Augt~st. The City 
Com~nissioil is required to hold a public hearing to discuss the budget prior to its 
adoption. The budget is adopted by fund. An amendment to increase the budget is 
allowed up to the amount non property tax sources of revenue exceed the adopted budget. 
Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this repolt for each iiidividual 
gover~nnental fund for which ail ai~nual budget has been adopted. 



Factors Affecting Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial stateine~lts is best understood when it is 
cons~dered froin the specific envirolnnent within which the City operates. 

Local economy. The local eco~loiny is varied and diverse. Employnent oppol-tunities 
are provided by over 2100 local employers. Major employers include the University of 
Kansas, Lawrence Public Schools, Hallmark Cards, Lawrence Paper Conlpany, Ainarr 
Garage Doors, Bell-y Plastics, K-Mart Distribution Center, and Del Monte. On Apr11 8, 
2008, the City Cominission authorized tax increment financing and transportation 
devcloplnent districts for the Oread hotel project, l'he hotel opened in early 2010. Worli is 
also underway in the Bauer Farm Dc~relopment. Bauer Farms is a 43 acre mixed use 
developinent tl~at includes 200 single-family homes and multi-family units and 150,000 
square feet of retail and office space. It is Lameilce's second transportation development 
district. The development currently includes a CVS Pharmacy and a 'I'aco Bell with an 
additional pad site consisting of three additional retail busulesses under construction. h new 
Tractor Supply store is being constructed on east 23"' Street. 

I11 order to encourage biosciences in Lawrence, a vacant laboratoly facility was purchased to 

sen-e as an incubator for drug development. The purchase was jointly funded by d ~ e  city 
and Douglas County and will bc leased to the Lawrence Douglas County Biosciences 
iluthority. Thc authority has akeady identified one tenant for the facility. 

The average unemploylnent of the Lawrence MSA in 2009 was 5.5%. The total civilian 
labor force was 63,844 in December, 2009. The average annual unemploynent rate for 
2005, 2006, 2007 and 2008 was 4.0%, 3.7%, 3.7% and 3.9% respectively. The number 
of homes sold in Lawrence d~u-ing 2009 was 981, a decrease of 8% compared to 2008. 
The average selling price for a home was $191,583 during the year, a decrease of 2.2% 
from the 2008 average. 

Long-term fillallcia1 planning. As Lawrence continues to grow the need to build new 
infrastructure and inaintain existing streets and stonn sewers becomes very important. 
The City has experienced a significant number of special benefit districts to finance 
streets and sidewallts in the Northwestern part of the City. The City typically allows 
benefit district projects to be financed over a ten year period. If the properly taxes are not 
paid by the propei-ty owners in the benefit district, the cost of the principal and interest 
payments are covered by the public at-large. 

The City Com~nission has reviewed a ten year capital iinprovenlent plan £or the water and 
sanitary sewer utility. The plan ii~cludes over $83 millio~l in projects. A rate study to 
dete~lnine the cost of service and level of water and sanitary sewer rates for the next five 
years was completed in June of 2004 and approved by the City Co~nmission in December 
2004. The cui-rent plan called for a rate increase of 12.0% for water service and no 
increase for sanitary sewer service in 2009. The projects will be financed with a 
co~nbination of cash and revenue bonds. 



The City Commissio~l is provided with a projection of the revenue, expenditures, and 
fund balances of the property tax supported funds as part of the deliberations over the 
operating budget. The main purpose is to avoid large fluctuations in the property tax levy 
and to warn of potential deficits and the need to either enhance revenue sources andlor 
reduce the growth of expenditures. The City Commissio~l has adopted a policy to 
~nai~itaiil the fund balance in the General Fund at a level equal to 15-30% of expenditures. 

Cash managernelit policies and practices. Cash temporarily idle during the year was 
invested in certificates of deposit, obligations of Federal agencies, and the Kailsas 
Municipal Investment Pool. The maturities of investments varied from three months to 
four years with an average maturity just over one year. The weighed average yield on 
investments during the year was 2.1%. The City's cash management policy was certified 
by the Municipal Treasurer's Association in 2002. In addition, the State's Pooled Money 
Investment Board has granted the City expanded investment powers. 

Risk Management. The City of Lawrence self insures for the majority of our risks. 
General a11d automobile liability over $300,000 per occurrence and $1 million in 
aggregate are covered by third parties. The City also maintains insurance policies 
covering certaiil high cost items such as fire trucks. To lessen the budgetary impact of 
large settlements, the City has maintailled a liability reserve fund totaling over $1.5 
million. 

Pension and other postemployment benefits. The City of Lawrence fill1 time 
employees participate in a defined benefit retirement system sponsored by the State of 
Kansas. Both the employee and employer contribute. State statutes establish the various 
contribution levels. There are different plans for public safety employees and all other 
city en~ployees. Currently, the rates paid are not sufficieilt to adequately fund the system. 
As a result, the unfunded liabilities of the plans have been increasing. 

The City also contributes to the cost of retiree health care. The benefit is funded on a 
pay-as-you-go basis. GAAP requires the City to report a liability in the financial 
statements in coimection with an enlployer's obligation to provide these benefits. The 
City contracted with an actuary to determine our liability. For 2009, the act~~arial accrued 
liability for other post employnent benefits was $4.2 million. 

Awards and Acknowledgeme~~ts 

The Gove~mnent Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of 
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Lawrence for its 
coniprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the year ended December 31, 2008. 
This was the eighteenth consecutive year that the City has received this prestigious 
award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the goverinne~lt published 
ail easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied both GAAP and 
applicable legal requirements. 



A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our 
current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program's requirements 
and we are s~~brnitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate. 

In addition, the City also received the GFOA's Distinguished Budget Presentation Award 
for its 2009 annual budget document. In order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget 
Presentation Award, the budget docurneilt was judged to be proficient in several 
categories, i~lcluding as a policy document, a financial plan, an operatioils guide, aiid a 
colninunications device. 

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and 
dedicated services of the Finance Department. We would like to express our appreciation 
to all inenlbers of the departnlent who assisted and coiltributed to the preparation of this 
report. Special ackuowledge~nent must be given to the work of Laura Wanler. In 
closing, without the leadership and support of the governiilg body of the City, preparation 
of this report would not have been possible. 

Respectfully submitted, 
/ 

A. Ed Mullins 
Finance Director 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Mayor and City Commission 
City of Lawrence, Kansas 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Lawrence, Kansas, as of and for the year ended December 31. 2009, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements 
based on our audit. We did not audit the financial statements of the Lawrence Memorial Hospital which statements 
reflect total assets of $21 1,558,315 as of December 31, 2009 and total expenses of $138,149,967 for the year then 
ended, and the Lawrence-Douglas County Housing Authority which statements reflect total assets of $20,097,352 
as of December 31, 2009 and total expenses of $7,348,751 for the year then ended, which are discretely presented 
component units in the accompanying financial statements. Those financial statements were audited by other 
auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts 
included for the Lawrence Memorial Hospital and the Lawrence-Douglas County Housing Authority is based solely 
on the reports of the other auditors. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in "Government Auditing Standards," issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and the "Kansas Municipal Audit Guide." Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of 
material misstatement. The financial statements of the Lawrence Memorial Hospital and the Lawrence Public 
Library were not audited in accordance with "Government Auditing Standards." An audit includes consideration of 
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control 
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the basic financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
basic financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provides a 
reasonable basis for our opinions. 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business- 
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the City of Lawrence, Kansas, at December 31, 2009, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund 
for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 



In accordance with "Government Auditing Standards," we have also issued our report dated April 30, 2010, on our 
consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is 
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with "Government Auditing Standards" and should be 
considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

The management's discussion and analysis, the schedule of funding progress and the schedule of employer 
contributions as identified in the table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are 
supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the 
methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit 
the information and express no opinion on it. 

Our audit was made for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audit of 
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations," and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements. The introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules. 
and statistical tables as listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a 
required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards and 
the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules have been subjected to the auditing 
procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material 
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. We did not audit the data included in the 
introductory and statisiical sections of this report and therefore, we express no opinion on them. 

April 30, 2010 



Management's Discussion and Analysis 
Unaudited 

As management of the City of Lawrence, Kansas, we offer readers of the financial statements an overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of the City of Lawrence for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2009. We 
encourage readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we 
have furnished in our letter of transmittal of this report. 

Financial Highlights 

The assets of the City of Lawrence exceeded it's liabilities at the end of 2009 by $319,794,843. Of this 
amount, $56,040,760 may be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations. 

An event that helped increase net assets was a $2.7 million increase in total capital assets 

As of December 31, 2009, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$39,401,333, a decrease of $5,660,407 in comparison with the prior year. The decrease occurred as the 
result of a temporary deficit in the capital projects fund. Approximately 56% is available for spending at 
the City's discretion. 

- At the end of 2009, the City's unreserved general fund balance was $12,564,947 or 20.9% of total 
general fund expenditures. 

- The City's total long term debt decreased by $165,899 during the year. The city issued $3.2 million in 
general obligation bonds and $10.4 million in water and sewer revenue bonds. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Lawrence's basic financial 
statements. The financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) 
fund financial statements, 3) notes to the financial statements. The report also contains other supplementary 
information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide 
readers with a broad overview of the City's finances. 

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may serve as a useful 
indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the year. All 
changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless 
of the timing of related cash flows. Some revenues and expenses reported in the statements will result in cash 
flows in future fiscal periods. 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City that are principally supported 
by taxes and intergovernmental revenues from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant 
portion of their costs through user fees and charges. The governmental activities include general government, 
public safety, public works, and recreation. The business-type activities include the water and sanitary sewer. 
sanitation, storm sewer, and golf course operations. 

The government-wide financial statements include not only the City of Lawrence, but also the Lawrence Public 
Library, the Lawrence Public Housing Authority and Lawrence Memorial Hospital. Financial information for these 
component units is reported separately from the financial information presented for the City. 

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities of objectives. The City uses fund accounting to ensure 
and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds can be divided into three 
categories: governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. 



Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, governmental fund financial 
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as on balances of spendable 
resources. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is different than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is 
useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand 
the long-term impact of the government's near-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a 
reconciliation to facilitate this comparison. 

The City of Lawrence maintains 30 individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately in the 
governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and 
changes in fund balances for the general fund and the debt service fund. Data from the other governmental funds 
are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for these funds is provided in the form 
of combining statements in this report. 

A budget is approved annually for the general fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the 
general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget. 

Proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report 
the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. Enterprise 
funds are used to account for the activities of the water and sewer, sanitation, public parking, storm water, and 
golf course operations, Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs 
internally among functions. Internal service funds are used to account for fleet maintenance and office supplies. 
These activities have been included within the governmental activities in the government-wide financial 
statements. 

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more 
detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water and sewer and 
sanitation operations. The other enterprise funds and the internal service funds are combined into a single, 
aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. Individual fund data for the non-major 
enterprise funds and the internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements. 

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the City. 
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statement because the resources of those 
funds are not available to support the City's programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is similar to that 
used for proprietary funds. 

Notes to  the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full 
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. 

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, the report also 
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City's progress in funding its obligation to 
fund its outstanding debt. 

The combining statements are presented immediately following the required supplementary information 



Government-wide Financial Analysis 

By far the largest portion of the City of Lawrence's net assets reflects its investment in capital assets. Capital 
assets are used to provide services and are not available for future spending. The resources needed to repay 
capital-related debt must be provided from other sources. 

City of Lawrence's Net Assets 
(000's) 

Governmental Business-type Total 
2009 - 2008 2009 - 2008 - 2009 2008 

Current and other Assets $ 101,119 $ 103,165 $ 56,405 $ 50,044 $ 157,524 $ 153,209 
Capital Assets 188,790 184,692 202,533 203,880 391,323 388,572 
Total $- 289,909 $ 287,857 $ 258,938 $ 253,924 - $ 548,847 $ 541,781 

Other Liabilities $ 42,567 $ 38,748 $ 3,413 $ 4,344 $ 45,980 $ 43,092 
Long term Liabilities 83,678 88,874 99,395 93,641 183,073 182,515 
Total $ 126,245 -- $ 127,622 $ 102,808 $ 97,985 $ 229,053 $ 225,607 - -- 

Net Assets: 
Capital Assets Net of Debt $ 102,317 $ 98,756 $ 131,256 $ 130,122 $ 233,573 $ 228,878 
Restricted 30,181 31,136 19,866 30,181 51,002 
Unrestricted 31,166 30,343 24,874 5,951 56,040 36,294 

Total $ 163,664 $ 160,235 - $ - 156,130 - $ - 155,939 $ - 319,794 $ 316,174 

A portion of the net assets represents resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be 
used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net assets may be used to meet ongoing obligations. 

As of the end of 2009, the City is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets, both for the 
government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental and business-type activities. 

There was an increase in net assets for the governmental type funds due in large part to an increase in capital 
assets. The increase in governmental other liabilities was the result of the issuance of $14.1 million in bond 
anticipation notes. The decrease in long term government liabilities was the result of the issuance of $3.2 million 
in general obligation bonds less the retirement of $9.0 million in general obligation bonds from governmental type 
sources. A total $4.8 million of the general obligation bonds are payable from Business-type activities. 

There was also an increase in net assets reported in connection with the business-type activities. The Water and 
Sewer Fund had an increase in restricted cash and investments of $8.2 million from unspent bond proceeds. The 
other business-type activities reported combined decreases in net assets of slightly less than $420,000. Long 
term liabilities increased with the issuance of $10.4 million in water and sewer revenue bonds and the retirement 
of $4.1 million in debt. 



Overall, the City's net assets increased by $3,620,335 during 2009 as a result of the construction of governmental 
capital assets and unspent water and sewer revenue bond proceeds. The city has been using internally 
generated cash to fund a portion of the water and sewer capital improvements. The Storm Water Utility is 
responsible for retiring $4.8 million in general obligation debt. A more complete analysis of the changes in the 
City's net assets is shown below. 

City of Lawrence's Changes in Net Assets 
(000's) 

Governmental Business-type Total 
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 

Revenues: 
Program Revenues: 
Charges for Service 
Operating Grants 
Capital Grants 

General Revenues: 
Property Taxes 
Sales Taxes 

Franchise Fees 
Unrestricted Grants 
Other 

Total 

Expenses 
General Government 
Public Safety 
Public Works 
Social Services 
Recreation 
Health 
Interest on Debt 
Water and Sewer 
Sanitation 
Public Parking 
Storm Water 
Golf 

Total exoenses 

Excess [deficiency] (869) 455 4,488 5,539 3,619 5,994 
Transfers 4,297 3,891 14,2971 [3,891] 
Change in Net Assets 3,428 4,346 191 1,648 3,619 5,994 
Beginning Net Assets 160,236 155,889 155,939 154,291 316,175 310,180 

Ending Net Assets $ 163,664 $ 160,235 $ 156,130 $ 155.939 $ 319,794 $ 316,174 - 

Governmental activities. Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $3,428,990 during the year, 
Key elements of governmental activities during the year are as follows. 
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Total governmental revenues decreased by 4.9% in 2009. Operating grants increased because of a $400,000 
increase in CDBG and new police related federal grants. Property taxes revenue remained level because of a 
1 .O% increase in assessed valuation and a slight reduction in the overall mill l e y  due to the elimination of the levy 
for public transportation and a nearly 1.0 mill increase in the General Fund. Sales tax revenue increased because 
on three new voter approved sales taxes totaling 0.55%. The new sales taxes went into effect April 1, 2009. 
Franchise fees increased by 6.0% because of an increase in electricity rates. 

Expenses for governmental purposes increased 6.7%. Employees were eligible for merit increases funded by a 
2.0% merit pool. There was also an increase in the employer contribution for health care. The 2009 budget 
included a reduction of 14 positions, most of which were in the governmental funds. Public safety expenses 
increased 4.5% due to salary increases that were greater than non-public safety employees. Public Works 
expenses increased primarily because of costs related to the new infrastructure sales tax. 

mSeNlce Charges 

mOpermng Grants 

mSaiesTaes 

mFranch~se Fees 

Business-type activities. Business-type activities increased the City's net assets by $191,345. The Water and 
Sewer Fund and Storm Water Fund experienced positwe changes in net assets while the Sanitat~on, Public 
Parking and Golf Course Funds experienced reductions. The key elements of the changes in net assets are as 
follows: 

- Positive change in net assets in the Water and Sewer Fund equaling $687,705. Water rates were 
increased 12.0% on average with no increase in sewer rates in 2009. 

- Positive net income in the Storm Water Fund equaling $233,236. Storm water fees were not changed 
in 2009. 

- Program revenue increased slightly due to the increase in water rates being offset by a histor~cally 
wet summer. Interest earnings were also significantly lower. 

- Business-type operating expenses were 3.0% greater than 2008 and were constrained in order to 
balance revenues and expenses. Interest expenses in the Water and Sewer Fund increased by over 
$700,000. 

Business Activities Operating Revenues and Expenses 
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Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds 

Governmental funds. The focus of the City's governmental fund is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City's financing 
requirements. In particular, ~ t I r e s e ~ e d  fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's net 
resources available for spending in future years. 

As of December 31, 2009, the City of Lawrence's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of 
$39,402,333, a decrease of $5,660,407 from the prior year. Approximately 56% of the total is unreserved and 
thus available for spending in future years. The remaining amount has been committed to liquidate contracts and 
purchase orders and pay debt service and legal claims. 

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. At the end of 2009, unreserved general fund balance 
totaled $12,564,947, while total general fund balance was $12,831,420. Unreserved general fund balance 
represents 20.9% of total general fund expenditures, within the 15-30% range established by the City 
Commission's adopted fund balance policy. 

Key factors affecting the general fund balance are as follows: 

A 1.0% increase in assessed value with a nearly 1.0 mill increase in the General Fund levy 
A 16.8% increase in sales tax distributions due to the voter approved sales taxes going into effect on 
April 1, 2009 
A 6.0% increase in franchise revenue primarily due to increases in electricity rates 
A 9.2% increase in expenditures from the prior year as the result of an increase in transfers to other 
funds from the new sales taxes and additional infrastructure projects funded by the new sales tax 

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of $16,428,662, all of which is reserved for debt service. The 
amount includes over $8.0 million held by a fiscal agent to fund a cross-over refunding. The amount of debt 
payments are projected to increase in the near future to finance benefit district projects to be paid with special 
assessment revenue. 

Proprietary funds. The City's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government- 
wide financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted fund equity of the Water and Sewer Fund totaled $18,965,372 at the end of 2009. The unrestricted 
fund equity of the Sanitation Fund amounted to $1,750,581 at the end of 2009. The change in net assets for the 
Water and Sewer Fund was $687,705. The Sanitation Fund had a reduction in net assets of $259,824. The cool 
wet summer had an impact on the water and sewer fund. Lower demand for water resulted in water revenue that 
was $1.1 million less than budgeted. To offset the revenue loss, expenses in the water and sewer utility were 
constrained. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

The City of Lawrence adopts its budget on a fund basis. The 2009 adopted General Fund budget was not 
amended by the City Commission during the year. On the revenue side, nearly every revenue category was less 
than the budgeted amount with the exception of property taxes. Expenditure adjustments between programs and 
line items were significant since departments were directed to reduce spending. Departmental budgets were 
reduced and placed in a contingency account. The more significant operational changes to the 2009 budget from 
prior year budgets are listed below: 

- A total of 14 positions were eliminated. 
- A 2.0% merit pool was budgeted for all employees. 
- Departments and outside agencies were requested to reduce their operating budgets in order to 

better match revenues. 
- Voters approved three new sales taxes totaling 0.55% providing funding for public transportation and 

infrastructure projects. 



Kansas Statutes allow cities to amend budgets if there is an increase in non-property tax revenue sources. While 
the City of Lawrence experienced some revenue decreases, it was not necessary to formally amend the general 
fund budget because expenditures were significantly below the adopted budget. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 

Capital assets. The City's investments in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of 
December 31, 2009, amounts to $391,322,433 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings, improvements, equipment, roads, and bridges. The increase in capital assets for 
the current year was 0.7%. (For additional information on the city's capital assets please read Note 8 on page 
49.) 

Major capital asset additions during the year included the following: 

- Construction of 25Ih Terrace 
- Purchase of Burroughs Creek right of way 
- Completion of the Delaware Commons project 
- Construction of the Stoneridge Drive water storage tank 

City of Lawrence's Capital Assets 
(net of depreciation) 

(000's) 
Governmental Business-type Total 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 - 2008 

Land $ 15,123 $ 14,576 $ 5,935 $ 5,818 $ 21,058 $ 20,394 
Buildings 27,589 29,074 57,030 56.805 84,619 85,879 
Improvements 19,225 20,283 106,107 107,989 125,332 128.272 
Equipment 5,639 4,314 5,196 4,115 10,835 8,429 
Infastructure 109,253 108.607 109.253 108.607 
Construction in Progress 11,961 7,838 28.264 29,153 40,225 36,991 

Total 

Long-term debt. At the end of 2009, the City of Lawrence had total bonded debt outstanding of $137,420,000. 
Of this amount, $82,430,000 comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government (general 
obligation debt). The remainder of the bonded debt represents bonds secured solely by revenue generated by 
the Water and Sewer utility (revenue bonds). In addition, the City had $37,758,506 due in accordance with the 
State Revolving Loan Fund (SRF) program for water and wastewater projects. (For additional information on the 
city's debt please read Note 7 on page 43.) 

City of Lawrence's Outstanding Debt 
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds 

(000's) 
Governmental Business-type Total 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
General Obligation $ 77,591 $ 83,405 $ 4,839 $ 5.505 $ 82.430 $ 88.910 
Revenue 54.990 46.290 54.990 46.290 
SRF 

Total 

The City's total outstanding debt decreased $165,899 during the year. The major component of this decrease 
was the reduction in outstanding general obligation debt. Principal payments on revenue bonds from the 
business-type activities totaled $4.1 million. A total of $3.25 million in general obligation debt was issued and 
$9.7 million was retired. Over $4.8 million in general obligation debt will be retired with storm water revenue. 



The City of Lawrence has been given a rating of Aa2 on its general obligation debt by Moody's. The City's 
revenue bonds have been rated Aa3 by Moody's. 

Kansas statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a city may issue to 30 percent of total assessed 
valuation. On December 31, 2009 the debt limitation for the City of Lawrence was $277,949,841, which is 
significantly in excess of the $82,430,000 in general obligation debt the City had outstanding as of December 31, 
2009. 

Economic Factors and 2010 Budget 

The average unemployment rate for the City of Lawrence in 2009 was 5.5%. This is below the 2009 State 
average of 6.7%. The City experienced a decrease of 0.8% in its assessed valuation in 2009. The 2009 
assessed valuation is used to iund the 2010 budget. The City Commission approved the formation of one tax 
increment financing district (TIF) and two transportation development districts (TDD). The TIF and TDD for the 
Oread Hotel project, a hotel and an underground parking lot located just north of the University of Kansas campus, 
began providing increments in early 2010. The second TDD for the Bauer Farms project, a mixed use 
development in northwest Lawrence, began collecting an additional 1% sales tax in late 2009. 

During 2009, unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased by $340,580, It is expected that the 
revenues and expenditures in the General Fund balance will be balanced in 2010 despite the expectation that 
revenues will be below budget. Because of slow economic growth during the time the 2010 budget was being 
developed, the budget incorporated smaller increases in the growth rates for the major revenue sources. Funding 
for infrastructure maintenance was increased in the 2010 budget due to a full year collection of the new sales tax. 
A total of 12 positions, 7 in the water and sewer fund, were eliminated and a 1.25% merit pool was included. 

The City Commission approved an increase in the rates charged for water service by an average of 10%. There 
was no overall increase in rates for sanitary sewer service for 2010. The water rate increase was approved to 
provide funding for the capital improvement plan and increases in operating expenses. The increase in sanitation 
rates for both residential and commercial customers was 5% for 2010. The sanitation rate increase was 
implemented to cover increased operating expenses and to avoid a larger rate increase in the future. 

Requests for  Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Lawrence's finances for all those with 
an interest in the City's finances. Questions concerning any of the iniormation provided in this report or requests 
for additional information should be addressed to: City of Lawrence, Finance Director, P.O. Box 708, Lawrence, 
KS 66044. The City's website can be found at www.lawrenceks.org. 
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CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Statement of Net Assets 
December 3 1,2009 

P~-imswy Government 
Cavcrntnental Husiness-type Component 

Activities Activities Total llnits 

Cash S 12,393,410 7,492,778 19,886,188 19,441,028 
I n v e ~ I n ~ ~ ~ ~ t s  49,455,329 41,169,571 90,624,900 66,6I9,8g3 
llecciviibirs (net of alltiwa~icc of$82,240) 41,754,468 2,676,622 44,43 1,090 20,376,717 
lntcmiil balances 
lnvciltor~cs 
Prepaid iterns 
Deferred costs 
Other asscli 
C'apital assets (Net) 

Land and construction in progress 27,084,412 34,199,198 61,283,010 4,497,716 
Other capital asscla, net ofdepreciation 161.705.438 168,333,385 330,038,823 116,436,323 

I otal L~SICIS $ 2891)09,301 258.937.708 548,847,009 235.440.882 

Liabilities 

Accounls payable and accrued cnprnses $ 5,440,916 3,412,715 8,853,631 1 1,103,022 
IJneamcd revenue 22,743,076 .- 22,743,076 623,896 
i'empolmry iiotes payabie 14,382,537 - 14,382,537 - 

l,ong-tern, iiabilitles 
Due within one year 11,436,401 5,933,864 17,370,265 4,741,921 
Duc in more than olie year 72,241,808 93.460.849 165,702,657 62,691,995 

Total iiabliities S 126.244.738 102.807.428 229.052.l66 79.1 61.134 

Ncl Assets 
Invested in capital asscls, net of debt b 102,317,081 131,255,940 213,573,027 63,882,272 
Rcslilcted for:  

Debt sel-vlce 29,748,004 ~- 29,748,004 1,038,126 
Othel- polyoses 433,052 433,052 -- 

Unrestricted 31.166.420 24.874.340 56,040,760 91,359,050 

Toml nct assers $ 163.664561 156.130.280 310,794,843 156.279 448 

The notes to the basic f i i i a n c i a l  s t a t e l n e ~ i t s  are an integral part of this statement 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

State~nct~t oEActiviries 
For the Year Ended Dcceinber 31,2009 

S 7,318,751 7,399,374 - 721.716 - - - 771.319 
i 38 . l i9 .9b i  117.761400 1,133,017 ~. . .. - I I.DiR.460 

i . 5 5 2 . 4 l i  110.701 3,352,615 - - - - (IY.OOR1 
S , 0 5 2  111.111171 3,352,615 2.116.711 - - - -- PPP 

11.773.701 

Cclleiri Rli.nuii 
TZ,X<S 

P r n l ~ r l y  tries, iciled lorgellcr;il ylllyasrr i8. i l2.239 - 18,112,239 - 

Proyrily U~rs ,  levlrd lor dcbi sew,, 6,531,465 - 6,531,465 - 
Fral,riliic trxes 5,872,915 - 5.372.921 - 

S,tles U8xCs 27,025,710 - 27,025,710 - 

Gr~nts  rild coilriliUCluns notrisirirlcd lo Specific pro?,rimi 760.11 1 6.321 746,816 - 
IJttreili~clFd r n i . ~ s ~ ~ ~ c ~ ~ ~  umiiigs I,J7?,*09 2W.613 1.38b.052 2.902139 
hllicelirnrour 31.107 ZPV.Q62 43l.069 57.618 

Tllllslem 4.297.080 (1.207.0801 - - 

'iolrl ~ e l l c r r i  icrcaaer rnd Lrrlliirri 61.838.446 (3.684.iSOI 60. l i l . iQb 2.960.307 

Chairs In ns$ oiieli 1128.990 101.345 3.6?0.311 16714.0~8 

i'he notes to t i ~ c  basic finaiiciai statements aye an integral part of this statement 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Balance Sheet 
Governmental Funds 
December 3 1, 2009 

Cash 
Carl? with fiscal agcnt 
InvCStinent~ 
I?eccivables: 

Taxes 
Special asscssmcnls 
lntergovelnmci~tiil 
Accouc?ts (i ict of alloi\,ance oSS4,166) 
Franchise Sccs 
Loans 
Accrocd interest 

Iluc ii.om other funds 

Toral asscis 

1.iabilities and Fund Balanees 

L,~abil~lies: 
Accounts payablc 
Accrued payroll 
Due ro orlicl. liz~icls 

Unumoi-tiled prcmlom 
Ternpol-a1.y nolcs payable 
ilneained revcn~lc 

IFund balances: 
Rcscl-ved for eiic~unbral~ces 
Reserved for deb1 scrvice 
Ilesel-ved for loans 
IZeser\,ed for donor restsiclion 
Viircscl-vcd, repol-ted in: 

Gencral funii 
Special revenue fiurds 
Capiral projects fitnds 

Total filnd balances 

Total liabilities and 
Sttiid balances 

Debt Capital Other 
Ccneral scrrier I'rujects Covernmcnl.l 

Faad Fllncl llrtnnd Funds 

Amounts yeported for guvcmmcntal activities in the slalement of tiel asscls 
assets are iliSkrcnl bccauac: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities a1.c liot tinunclal resources 
and, t l~cidors ,  arc inot rcported in the f~mds.  

Other long-rci-m assets are )not available to pay for current perlad cxpenditul-es 
and, thereiorle are deferred in the funds. 

intcrnal service lunds are used by managc~i~cnl to charge the costs or ileet repairs 
ol'l'tce supplies, alld health insilrancc. The assets acid liabilities of the internal 
service Funds are inclilded in eovcmmcntul activities in thc statement of net assets 

Net assets ofgovcrnmentai activiries 

'rhe nulcs lo the basic financial statemenls arc an integral part o l  this statement 
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CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Statement o f  Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
Govemnlental Funds 

Year ended December 3 1.2009 

Cuncilf eapenditarcr: 
Gcnnvl g"\emmtilt 
Public slltkty 
Palilic ivi,rka 
l i e r l l l l  
Social selvices 
Cilllurc and recrevtio,, 
l'ooiiiin 
Aiq'orl 

C3pllal o i l l l ry  
D c b i  service. 

P n ~ ~ c l p d  rlctltelilenr 

I~ibrcsf and lircnl cliargcs 

Tofill er],eild!furer 

Excess (delicieacy] ofreveiiucs 
ovcr ( i i ~ ~ d e i )  enpendit~~res 

Of l le l  t i l l ' l i l~ i l lg  Source, (LISC~): 
i r m s s e n  ill 
Tirlisierr (out) 
l s i a n ~ ~ c c  o f  gcnclnl a b l ~ g a f ~ n ~ ~  bnlldr 

Tatrl other Cinai~cing 
ao,,rccs (asei] 

Nc, chnlgcs in Rilid bnlulices 

Fllild bulalce. beginllillq or year 

F a l d  bolnllce, "lid of year 

Dcbt Ca]~itial O t l ~ r r  Total 
Gunersl Service Projects Govcr~nmenrrl Csv~mment;tl 

Flulrl Fancl Fuml Fonds FunBt 

Thc nu tcs  to the hasic financlul statelnents arc ail i i i tcgral part of th is statement 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds 

To the Statement of Activities 
For the Year Ended December 3 1,2009 

Amouints reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are diiferent because: 

Net clianges in fuind balances - total governmental funds 

Govcl-nmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. I-lowever, in the statcment of 
activities the cost of those asscts is allocated over thcir estimated useful lives and reported as 
depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays excccded deprcciation 
in the current period. 

Revenues in thc statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not 
reported as revenues in the funds. 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides currcnt financial resources 
to gavel-nniental funds, while the repayment of thc principal of long-term debt consumes 
the current financial resources of govern~licntal funds. Neither transaction, however, has any 
cffect on net assets. Also, governmental funds report the eifect of issuance costs, preniiums, 
discounts, and si~iiilar itcms when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and 
amortized in the statcrnent of activities. This amount is the net effect of these diffcrences in 
thc tleatmcnt of long-term dcbt and relatcd items. 5,814,166 

Some expenses reported in the statcment of activities do not require the use of current financial 
resources and, therefore, arc not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. (55 1,346) 

'Thc net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental 
activities. (221,484) 

Change in net asscts of governmental activities $ 3,428,990 

The notes to thc basic financial statcments are an integral part of this statenicnt 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, hXNSAS 

Revenilcs: 
Taxcs 
Liccnses and permits 
Charges for services 
Fincs, forfeitures and penalties 
Iiitcrcst 
Intcrgovernmentai 
Rcirnbursements 
Miscellaneor~s 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
General govcmment 
Public safcty 
Public works 
Health 
Social services 
Culture and i-ecrcation 
Airport 
Capital oritlay 

General Fund 
Statenlent of Revenues, Expenditores and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year Ended December 3 1, 2009 
(With Colliparative Actual Amou~l t s  for 2008) 

2009 
Variance 

Original Final Positive 2008 
Budeet Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Debt service: 
Principal ~rctireinent atid interest cxpeiise - - - 

Total expenditures 52,432.752 52,968,740 50.489.046 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues ovcr 
(under) expendlti~res 5,121,240 4,585,252 5,980,774 

Other financing sources (uses): 
Transfers in 3,312,883 3,312,883 3,312,883 
Twnsfcrs out (14.1 18,863) (13,958,863) (8,953,077) 

Total othcr financing sources (uses) (10,805.980) (10,645,980) (5,640.1 94) 

Exccss (deticienc\,) of reve~iiics and 66,551,615 66.927,603 , , 
other sources over (under) 
expenditnl-es and othcr (uses) $ 15.684.740) 16.060.728) 340,580 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Net change in resel-vc for cncurnbrances 

Fund balancc, cnd of year $ 12,831,420 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an  integral part of this statement 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Balance Sheet 
Proprietary I'onrls 

Deccmber 31,2009 

C."~"llll,~"f.l 
~ a i i n e s r - t t l , ~  ~ ~ t i ~ i t i . ~ - ~ , , t ~ ~ , , r i s e  rulldr ~ e t i v i t k s .  

Sfornl Nollcllrjo. l l l t l r n a l  
Wale. xad Wnfcv Elllrrprirc Seruke 

Anrfr Scner Sr,~ic~tion litililv I l h u ~ t l s  l n t r l  F~ccn~lr 
''unr,,tirsc,i 

Cis11 6 337,447 268,175 571.017 111.6111 1.719.350 SS2.380 
l ~ l i e i l i n ~ ~ ~ i i  11.105.223 1.7'>%471 449,nls 90,921 11,054,514 7.100.761 
liucelilrbl?e 

*ccuui,o (i,ctoiallo\.,,,,,oi 
2*0 49%) 1,103,536 Od6.331 117.3113 11.210 2,617,412 441,832 

Asi iaed i l , lc l f i i  57,175 8,541 416 78 59.210 
- 

7.201 
I I I IC I I L I I I ~ I  1,969,1152 - 10.722 i.WK774 319,510 
124rpmd itetni 283,114 - - - 283.114 - 

Rcnrlde* c.ir1, 
?~miomcdcposlR 111,729 l.105 - - I I1.838 - 
rltl~rlm ]p0ali~11 o f l i v ~ i l u ~  bi>ndi 1.841.000 - - - i.965.000 - 

Reit,,cicd I,,vcllmeilr 
Cuiiclmi# dclloriti 899h62 - - - 8nP.662 - 

i a l o l  cuneia :aletr 22,685,938 2716.631 1182.674 b05.452 27,7911,805 X.751.684 

h.lmnine", riiclr 
l l e l l l i r l r d  czill 3,695,594 - ..- .- 1,691,591 - 
l<citriciod l l l rrsl~l icnf i  22.615.170 - - - 22.611.370 - 

Totiil ie ir l l r ied vic i i  20.31O.Q64 - - 26.2 10.961 - 

Clplf.ll :mie,i 
l a n d  3641,714 - I.SI4.72V 479,055 i.'i35,498 - 
Buildinps m d  improvcinencs 207,715,493 i.527.922 12,973,072 7.700.717 129,917,214 674.819 
Lquipnlclll 5,908.926 6.75l.liiX 1 ,472382  137.259 11.670185 761,318 
Clllirti l lctinll in piogrci i  28,263,700 ~. - - 28,261.700 - 

Accuniul led depieciotloll 162.964.71121 (5,540.0211 ('585.454 ( i i< i? .X i7 i  (76254,014) (669918, 
Tuf;il i i p l l l i  rirclr iX2.561.111 2,738,919 13.675.329 3.5S1.204 202,532,583 2611.259 

Toirl ~ i a > s u i l i l l l  rircli 208.8761105 2.73X.Wg 13.615.32U 3.5iJ.204 22R.841.547 166.259 

l o l l 1  ilsselB $ 2 5 3 5 19s 550 I 4  BSX ,003 ?,21",856 756.134142 9017041 

Lirbilitir~ al.1 Net Arrerr 

Lnbiillie, 
Cia7aa l i rbi l i !~ei  

Account6 )pry;rbie S 560.013 4 7  123,841 24.714 857.649 SILS? 
Acrrlled i l l l e lcs ip r j lb l i  068,425 - 56,618 

~ ~- 1,025,043 - 

Vlrilns pryable - - - - - 415.113 
Amlacd poyiili i 210.036 177.016 24,775 40.700 117.527 35,856 
Accrued i;icniinn m d  i lck pry 842.111 1611.483 45.961 65.VOS 034,794 69.936 
Clllneni !loroo,! o l g r l l i r i l  obiignrioll bonds -- - 561.886 - 501.8811 - 

l u W  lunlril l ictcd cullcni l irblll l ler 2266.91'1 bX4.5dO 812.5XI 132.819 1.8rib.Rn9 046.118 

cunl.,,, i l rbl i i t ie i  pry"biftiolniis,iirtcd rsseis 
Cariamcl dcpoilt, L O >  1.391 1.105 - .- 1012,496 - 
Cuneni )pnilion o f  lcvclil le b n d r  1.961.0110 - - - 1.1161000 ~~. .  

'lola1 cu#~enL l isb>litlrr nrynble lio>n 
lcs i l i~ l rd  rrreti 2.976.191 !.I05 - .- 2.977.444 - 

Toml ianol i  liabiiitier 5.243.350 681,641 811.181 132.819 68711.191 444. i iX 

Nu,,cunulli 1i;lhlltllcs 
roml '~n ia icd  nbiellcci 429.221 30U:>?I 40,008 46,306 841,476 79.934 
Gelicr l l  obilgatnoil bonds payoblc .- 1,277,215 - 4.277.2lS -. 
Rwu,,,~ b",ldi pryatble 51.021.0I1" - - - 13,025,000 - 

boles p:~y.ibic 37,758,506 ... - - 11,758,506 -. 
Kc1 OPED oliligilioxi 11!103 10.464 1 ,003 2.371 26.830 - 

i o ~ > l  n i ,nrun~m b h i h t i e i  01.215.7?2 310.405 6.3\%.216 O K ~ S U  9 s i i s . o ~ ~  79.934 

Toi r l  l i i l l i l i c i  96469.012 IOOLOSO i.liO.807 201.409 102.X07.428 776.092 

Nci issets 
Ilive,ted I I I  cipi tr l  l ircti ,  nci ofdcbt l l 6 1 , 5 S 9  2,118,919 8,836,228 3.553.204 131.215."40 2 6 6 . 2 3  
Urrci l i ictcd 18,965,372 i . i i O . 5 R i  890.968 464.151 22.071.076 S.025S02 

Tolrl ilri riseti 135.012.061 ?rIX'i,SOO 9,727,196 11,0017,357 153,327011 8,291,851 

T o t i  i , r i r i i , ic i  nnd 
,net ssc$s K 73, i f S o l 3  5495550 1 4 8 r p . n m  n,lnnis 5 901794s 

Toirl inri r-sets 153.127.Ol4 
A d ~ i ~ i s n e s i i  la >rtlccr t l ie  ian io l idn inn  a1 intcn!rl SEIY~EF fund rc i lv iscs 

~ciotrd to ei l t i rpl i ic illlids 2,801,266 

Ncl riicii of busl7lrrs-type rciivilier S IS0 I O 1 X n  

The noles to thc hasic financial slatements are an intezral Dart oflhis statement 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Cha~~ges  i n  Net Assets 
Proprietary Funds 

For the Year Ended Deceinber 31,2009 

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds Acti~ities- 

Storm Nonn~ajor Intc~.sal 
Water and Water Eeterprise Service 

Sewcr Sanitation I ' t i l i t~  Funds Total Funds 

Opclatiiig levcniics: 
Chal-ges hi- scrvices B 28,925,079 9,476,094 2,919,032 1,933.012 43,253,217 10,081,382 
Other salcs 174,890 182,751 - - 357.641 - 

Total operating vevenues 29,099,969 9,658,845 2319,032 1,933,012 43,1110,858 10,981,382 

Operating expenses: 
Continuing opcratlons 
Transmission and distrih~itian 
Gencl.aI administratton 
lblcallh insurance clalmb 
Depreciation and amorthratioo 

Total operating cnprilses 

Nonoperntbng rcvcnucs (expenses) 
Interest incolne 
Interest expcnac and t.tscai chargcs 
Grant procceds 
Gain (iosh) on sale of capital asscts 
Other 

Total nonopei.aling 
reveni~es (crpcoscs) (3,518,106) 142,518 (208,513) 5,105 13,578,906) 55,999 

Income (loss) bcSorc 
11-ansicl-s 3,772,563 126,201 1,033,236 (367,246) 4,564,754 (294,117) 

Tvansfers (out) (3,084,858) (386.025) (800.000 I 122.8931 14,293,776) 17.000) 

Clialige in iict assets 687,705 (259,824) 233,236 (390,139) 270.078 (30l,l17) 

Net assets, beginning of year, as restatcd 134,405.256 4,749,124 9,493,960 4,407,496 8,592368 

Net asscts, end ofyeal- 9: 135.092.'!6l 4.489.500 9.727.196 4.017.357 8.291.851 

Change in net asscts of business-type activities 

The notes to the basic f i l l a t i c i a l  s t a t e l l l e i l t s  are an integral part of this statement 
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ClTY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Statenlent of Assets and Liabilities 
A11 Agency F~uids 

December 3 1, 2009 

Assets 
Cash 
Accou~ts receivable 
Restyicted assets - court receivables 

Total assets 

Liabilities 
Acco1111ts payable 
Cou~t  bonds payable 

Total liabilities 

The notes to the basic fillancia1 statenlents are rnl integral part of this statenlent 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Combining Statement of Net Assets - Discretely Presented Component Units 
December 31,2009 

Assets 
Ciirrent assets: 

Gush 
lllv~stliletlts 
Rccci\,ables (net) 
111ve1ltol.i~~ 
Prepaid >terns 
Defen-ed costs 
Otllel- assets 
Capilal asrcts (nct) 

I.and and constioctioii in progress 
Othcr cvl~ital assets, net ofdep~.cciation 

Tolal assets 

Liabilities 

Accoiints payablc nnd accrued evpenscs 
ilneamcd icvclxie 
1.ollg-term I~abllitlcs 

Duc witlii~i one year 
Due in more than one ycar 

Lawrellee Lawrcnee Total 
Melnol.ial Puhlie Colllpanellt 
Hospital Library ilnits 

Total liabilities $ 2.043.961 76.842.428 275.045 79.ih1.414 

Net Assets 
Invested 111 capltiil assets, net ofdcbt S 12,840,578 48,501,238 2,540,456 63,882,272 
Resli-icicd for: 

Dclll scrvme - 1,038,126 .. . 1,038,126 

Total net assets $ 18.013.391 134 715.887 3.510,170 156,279.448 

The notes to the basic fi~lancial statements are an integral part of this statement 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Expenses 

Combining Statcnie~it of Activities - Discrctely Presented Colnponcnt Units 

For !he Year Ended December 31,2009 

Lawrence Lawrence Lawrence Total 
llousing Memorial Public Component 

Authority Hospital Library Units 

S 7,348,751 138,149,967 3,552,414 149,05 1,132 

Program rcvcnues: 
Charges For seivices 7,399,374 147,765,400 150,701 155,315,475 
Operating grants and contributions - - 3,352,615 3,352,615 
Capital grants and contributions 723,716 1,433,027 - 2,156.743 

Net (expense) revenue 774,339 11,048,460 (49,09 8) 11,773,701 

Cencral Revenues 
Unrestricted investment earnings 57,734 2,842,891 2,l 14 2,902,739 
Miscellaneous - 57,201 457 57,658 

Total general revenues and transfers 57,734 2,900,092 2,571 2,960,397 

Change in ]net assets 832,073 13,948,552 (46,527) 14,734,098 

Net asscts-bcginnlng, restated 

Nct assets-ending 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral pan of this statement 



City of Lawrence, Kansas 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 3 1,2009 

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

The City of Lawrence, Kansas (the City) is a municipal corporation governed by an elected five- 
member commission. These basic financial statements present the City and its component units, entities 
for which the City is considered to be financially accountable. The discretely presented component 
units are reported as a separate column in the basic financial statements to emphasize they are legally 
separate. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described below. 

A. Govcrrtment-wide and Fund Financial Statentertts 

The govemment-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of 
changes in net assets) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary 
government and its component units. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been 
removed from these statements. Govemmental activities, wh~ch normally are supported by taxes 
and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from certain husiness-type activities, 
which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary 
government is reported separately from certain legally separate component units for which the 
primary government is financially accountable. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given 
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are offset by 
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function 
or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or 
directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) 
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program 
revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and 
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial 
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are 
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. 

B. Measurement Focus, Accounting and Financial Statentent Presentation 

The government-wide fillancia1 statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary 
fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized 
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as 
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. Agency 
funds have no measurement focus. 

Govemmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual bass of accounting. Revenues are recognized as 
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when 
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the 
current period. For this purpose, the City considers revenues to be available if they are collected 
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a 
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt selvice expenditures, as well as 



City of Lawrence, Kansas 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 3 1,2009 

expenditures related to certain compensated absences and claims and judgments are recognized 
when the obligations are expected to he liquidated with expendable available financial resources. 

Property taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. 
Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to 
accmal criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying 
expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. 

The City applies all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 
pronouncements as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 
1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: FASB 
Statements and Interpretations, APB opinions, and ARBS. 

Proprietary fund type operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) 
in net total assets. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from 
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and 
services in connection with a proprietary fund's ongoing operations. The principal operating 
revenues of the City's proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales and services. 
Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and 
services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses 
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 

The internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or 
agencies of the government on a cost-reimbursement basis. The City has three internal service 
funds. The Central Maintenance Fund accounts for the repairs and maintenance expenses of the 
City's fleet of vehicles and equipment. The Stores Fund accounts for the purchase of office 
supplies. The Health Insurance Fund accounts for the payment of health insurance claims. 

Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not measure results of opel-ations or have a 
measurement focus. Agency funds do, however, use the accrual basis of accounting. Agency 
funds are used by the City of Lawrence for payroll withholdings, court bonds, certain Parks & 
Recreation activities and to record proceeds from fire insurance claims. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

General F L L ~ Z ~  is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government 
which are not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in 
another fund. 

Debt Sewice Fzmd is used to account for the accumulation of resources and payment of 
general obligation bond principal, interest and other related costs from governmental 
resources and special assessment bond principal and interest from special assessment levies 
when the City is obligated in some manner for this payment. 

- Capital Projects F~iizd is used to account for financial resources designated for the acquisition 
or construction of major capital projects other than those financed by proprietary funds. 

The City reports the following major proprietary 'iunds: 



City of Lawrence, Kansas 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 3 1,2009 

- Water and Sewer Fund is used to account for the operations of the City's water and sewer 
operations. 

Sanitation Fimd is used to account for the operations of the City's refuse collection service. 

Storm Wuter Utilily F~nld is used to account for the storm water fees and expenses for repair 
and maintenance of the storm water system . 

Inventories are valued at cost, which approximates market, using the average cost method. The 
costs of the Governmental Fund Type inventories are recorded as expenditures when consumed 
rather than when purchased. 

D. Burlgetary Procedures 

Kansas Statutes require that an annual operating budget be legally adopted for the General Fund, 
Special Revenue Funds (unless specifically exempted by statute), Debt Service Funds and certain 
Enterprise Funds. 

A legal annual operating budget is not required for the Capital Projects Fund and the following 
Special Revenue Funds: 

Airport Improvement Fund 
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 
Equipment Reserve Fund 
Guest Tax Reserve Fund 
Liability Reserve Fund 
Sales Tax Reserve Fund 
Law Enforcement Grant Fund 
Workers' Compensation Reserve Fund 
City Parks Memorial Fund 
Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund 
Cemetery Mausoleum Fund 
Housing Trust Fund 
Outside Agency Fund 
Wee Folks Scholarship Fund 
Fair Housing Assistance Fund 
CDBG Recovery Fund 
Community Development Fund 
Rehabilitation Escrow Fund 
Home Program Fund 
Transportation Planning Fund 
Law Enforcement Tmst Fund 

The statutes provide for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption of the legal annual 
operating budget: 

a. Preparation of budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before August I of each year 



City of Lawrence, Kansas 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 3 1,2009 

b. Publication of proposed budget and notice of public hearing on or before August 5 of each 
year. 

c. Public hearing on or before August 15 of each year, but at least ten days after public notice. 

d. Adoption of final budget on or before August 25 of each year. 

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for previously 
unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. To do this, a notice of 
public hearing to amend the budget must be published in the local newspaper. At least ten days 
after publication, the hearing may be held and the governing body may amend the budget at that 
time. The City amended the General Fund budget from the original $66,551,615 to the final 
amount of $66,927,603. The City also amended the Transportation Special Revenue Fund budget 
from $2,425,484 to the final amount of $2,801,472. 

The statutes permit management to transfer budgeted amounts between line items within an 
individual fund. However, such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the total amount of the 
adopted budget of expendihlres of individual funds (the legal level of budgetaty control). Budget 
comparison statements are presented for each fund showing actual receipts and expenditures 
compared to legally budgeted receipts and expenditures. 

All legal annual operating budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, 
modified further by the encumbrance method of accounting. Expenditures include disbursements, 
accounts payable and encumbrances. Encumbrances are commitments by the municipality for 
hture payments and are supported by a document evidencing the commitment, such as a purchase 
order or contract. All unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end. 

Spending in funds which are not subject to the legal annual operating budget requirement is 
controlled by federal regulations, other statutes or by the use of internal spending limits 
established by the City. 

E. Pooled Cash and lrzvestwzertts 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds managed by 
the City. The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand 
deposits and short-term i~lvestments with original maturities of three months or less from the date 
of acquisition. 

Cash balances from all funds are invested to the extent available in certificates of deposit and 
other authorized investments. Earnings from these investments, unless specifically designated, 
are allocated to the investing fund at maturity based on the percentage of funds invested to total 
investment. All investments are camed at fair value. 

F. Receivables and Payables 

Accounts Receivable. The City records revenues when services are provided. All receivables are 
shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts. 

Taxes Receivable. Collection of current year property tax by the County Treasurer is not 
completed, apportioned or distributed to the various subdivisions until the succeeding year, such 
procedure being in conformity with governing state statutes. Consequently, current year property 



City of Lawrence, Kansas 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 3 1.2009 

taxes receivable are not available as a resource that can be used to finance the current year 
operations o r  the City and, therefore, are not susceptible to accrual. Accruals of uncollected 
current year property taxes are offset by deferred revenue and are identical to the adopted budget 
for 2010. It is not practicable to apportion delinquent taxes held by the County Treasurer at the 
end of the accounting period, and further, the amounts thereof are not material in relationship to 
the financial statements taken as a whole. 

The determination of assessed valuations and the collection of property taxes for all political 
subdivisions in the State of Kansas are the responsibility of the various counties. The County 
Appraiser annually determines assessed valuations on January 1 and the County Clerk spreads the 
annual assessment on the tax rolls. The County Treasurer is the tax collection agent for all taxing 
entities within the county. In accordance with state statutes, property taxes levied during the 
current year are a revenue source to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year. Property 
taxes are levied and liens against property are placed on November 1 of the year prior to the fiscal 
year for which they are budgeted. Payments are due November I, becoming delinquent, with 
penalty, December 21. Payments of 50% are accepted through December 20, with the second 
50% then being due on or before May 10 of the following year. This procedure eliminates the 
need to issue tax anticipation notes since funds will be on hand prior to the beginning of each 
fiscal year. The City Treasurer draws down all available funds from the County Treasurer's 
office in two-month intervals. Taxes remaining due and unpaid at February 15 and July 1 are 
subject to collection procedures prescribed in state statutes. 

G. Capital Assets 

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets, are repoited in 
the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial 
statements. Capital assets are defined by the City as assets with an estimated useful life in excess 
of two years and an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 for property plant and equipment, 
or S50,000 for infrastructure assets. Such assets are stated at actual or estimated historical cost if 
purchased or constructed. Donated assets are recorded at fair value at the date of donation. 
Depreciation of plant and equipment is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated 
useful lives of the respective assets as follows: 

Water treatment plant and water sewer mains 50 years 
Buildings 10-50 years 
Improvements other than buildings 10-50 years 
Office equipment 3-20 years 
Machinery 3-20 years 
Infrastructure 50-80 years 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs are charged to expenses. Major expenditures for 
renewals and betterments are capitalized and depreciated over their estimated useful lives. 

Cost of assets sold or retired and the related amounts of accumulated depreciation are 
eliminated from the accounts in the year o f  sale or  retirement and any resulting gain or loss 
is reflected in the basic financial statements. 

H. Bond Discounts/lssuancc Costs 

In Governmental Fund Types, bond discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current 
period. Bond discounts and issuance costs for Proprietary Fund Types in the government wide 



City of Lawrence, Kansas 

Notes to Basic Financial Statements 

December 3 1,2009 

financial statements are deferred and amortized over the term of the bonds using the bonds 
outstanding method, which approximates the effective interest method. 

I. Contpensated Absences 

Under terms of the City's personnel policy, employees are granted vacation and sick leave in 
varying amounts based upon the length of service. In the event of termination, an employee with 
over six months of service will receive all accumulated vacation and one-fourth accumulated sick 
leave. All vacation and sick leave is accrued when incurred in the government wide and 
proprietary fund financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental 
funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee resignations and 
retirements. Compensated absences are paid from the fund in which the employees are paid. 

J. Capitalization of Interest 

Interest costs incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets for 
Enterprise Funds are capitalized, when material, as a component of the cost of acquiring such 
assets. There was no interest capitalized during 2009. 

K. Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting 
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting 
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

L. Dcf'erred Revenue 

The City has reported as deferred revenue certain taxes and special assessments which have been 
deemed to be measurable hut not available. 

M. Comparative Data /ReclussiJcations 

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in selected sections of the 
accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in the 
government's financial position and operations. Also, certain amounts presented in the prior year 
data have been reclassified in order to be consistent with the current year's presentation. 

N. Fund EqcriQ 

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for 
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use 
for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that 
are subject to change. 

0. Net Assets 



City of Lawrence, Kansas 
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Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by 
the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement 
of those assets. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their 
use either through the enabling legislations adopted by the City or through external restrictions 
imposed by creditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other governments. 

(2) Reporting Entity 

The City has considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable, and other 
organizations which are fiscally dependent on the City, or the significance of their relationship with the 
City are such that exclusion would be misleading or incomplete. This consideration relied on the 
underlying concept that elected officials are accountable for the actions of those they appoint to govern 
other organizations and that the City's financial statements should repost this accountability. Although 
elected officials are accountable for the actions of all appointees, generally accepted accounting 
principles establish financial accountability as the threshold for including an organization in the 
financial statements of the reporting entity. Financial accountability results from one of the following 
criteria: 

I .  The primary government (in this case the City of Lawrence) is financially accountable if it 
appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and it is able to impose its will on 
that organization and there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits 
to or impose burdens on the primary government. 

2. The primary government may he financially accountable if an organization is fiscally dependent on 
the primary government regardless of other circumstances. 

Based on this analysis, the following organizations have been classified as component units of the City 
of Lawrence and are presented on the discrete basis to emphasize that they are separate from the City: 

The Lawrence Housing Authority, created by State Statutes with a variety of corporate powers, 
operates the City's low income housing program, serving Lawrence and Douglas County. The 
Housing Authority is governed by a five member board appointed by the Mayor with approval of the 
City Commission. It is a component unit because it satisfies criterion I ahove. 

The 1,awrence Memorial Hospital, created by State Statutes with a variety of corporate powers, 
operates the city Hospital. The hospital is governed by a nine member board appointed by the Mayor 
with approval of the City Commission. It is a component unit because it satisfies criterion 1 ahove. 

The City of Lawrence Public Library, created by State Statutes as a body corporate, operates the City's 
public library, serving primarily Lawrence and Douglas County. The library is governed by a seven 
member board appointed by the Mayor with approval by the City Commission. It is a component unit 
because it satisfies criteria 1 & 2 above. 

Complete financial statements for each of the individual component units may be obtained at the 
entity's administrative offices. 

Lawrence Housing Authority Lawrence Public Libra~y Lawrence Memorial Hospital 
1600 Haskell Avenue 707 Vennont 325 Mame 
Lawrence, Kansas 66044 Lawrence, Kansas 66044 Lawrence, Kansas 66044 
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(3) Reconciliation of Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements 

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the 
government-wide statement of net assets. 

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - total 
governmental funds and net assets - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide 
statement of net assets. One element of that reconciliation explains that "long-term liabilities, 
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in 
the funds." The details of this $84,624,563 difference are as follows: 

Bonds payable 8 77,590,899 

Accrued interest payable 1,096.224 

Claims and judgments payable 609.506 

Compensated absences 5,253,770 

Net OPEB obligation 74,164 

Net adjustment to reduce fund balance - total governmental 
funds to arrive at net assets - governmental activities $ 84,624,563 

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues, 
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities. 

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a 
reconciliation between net changes in fund balances-total governmental funds and changes in net assets 
of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One element of 
that reconciliation explains that "Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, 
in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and 
reported as depreciation expense." The details of this $4,152,344 difference are as follows: 

Capital outlay $ 11,663,425 

Depreciation expense (7,511,081) 
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances -total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets - governmental 
activities $ 4.152.344 

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "The Issuance of long-tenn debt (e.g., bonds, 
leases) provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the 
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither 
transaction however, has any effect on net assets. Also, governmental Funds report the effect of 
issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts 
are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities." The details of this $5,814,166 difference are 
as follows: 
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Debt issued: 
Issuance of general obligation bonds 

Principal repayments: 
General obligation debt 9,064,166 

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total 
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assets - governmental 
activities $ 5,814,166 

Another element of that reconciliation explains that "Some expenses reported in the statement of 
activities do not require the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds." The details of this $551,346 difference are as follows: 

Compensated absences 
Claims and judgments 
Accrued interest 
Net OPE0 obligation (30,105) 
Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total 
governmental funds ta arrive at changes in net assets -governmental 
activities $ (551,346) 

(4) Budgetary Accounting 

The accounting principles employed by the City in its budgetary accounting and reporting differ from 
those used to present financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles 
due to the inclusion of encumbrances and reimbursements with expenditures in the budgetary basis 
statement. 

(5) Deposits and Investments 

Deposits - At December 31,2009, the Cily held the following investments: 

Investment T w e  
Weiqhted Averaqe 

Fair Value Maturity (Years) % Ratinas 
~ ~ 

Certificates of Deposit $ 22.600.000 0.26 27 Not applicable 
U.S. Government Agencies 46,968,554 0.05 57 Not applicable 
State Treasurer's investment pooi 13.040.572 0.53 16 S&P AAAflSI+ 

Total fair value $ 82,609,126 100% 

Portfolio weighted average maturity 0.19 

The municipal investment pool is under the oversight of the Pooled Money Inveslment Board. The 
board is comprised of the State Treasurer and four additional members appointed by the State 
Governor. The board reports annually to the Kansas legislature. State pooled monies may be invested 
in direct obligations of, or obligations that are insured as to principal and interest, by the U.S. 
government or any agency thereof, with maturities up to four years. No more than 10 percent of those 
funds may be invested in mortgage-backed securities. In addition, the State pool may invest in 
repurchase agreements with Kansas banks or with primary government securities dealers. 
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The City Commission has adopted an Investme~lt and Cash Management Policy that is reviewed 
annually by the Pooled Money Investmenl Board. The City's policy was certified by the MTA US&C 
Review Board. The policy establishes performance standards, legal authority, and procedures for the 
City's investments. 

Interest rate risk The City of Lawrence manages its exposure to declines in the fair market value of its 
investments by limiting the weighted average maturity of its investments to less than twelve months. 

Credit risk Kansas statutes and City policy limit the investment of public funds to certificates of 
deposit and U.S. Treasury obligations. The City of Lawrence has been granted expanded investment 
powers by the Pooled Money Investment Board of the State of Kansas and has adopted a policy 
detailing their ability to also invest in the obligations of govelnlnent sponsored corporations. l l e  
obligations of government sponsored corporations are not the liabilities of the U.S. government and do 
pose some credit risk. The City has no formal policy relating to the additional risks posed by implicitly 
guaranteed government agencies. 

Concentration of credit risk The City of Lawrence's investment policy does not allow for more than 
30% of the city's investment portfolio to be invested in the certificates of deposit of any one institution. 

Ciistodian credit risk-deposits In the case ofdeposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, 
the city's deposits may not be returned. Under State statute, deposits and certificates of deposit must 
be 100% collateralized. Most of the collateral is held at the Federal Reserve Bank in Boston, the 
remaining amount of collateral is held at the Country Club Bank in Kansas City, Missouri under a 
custodial agreement. Obligations of government sponsored agencies are held by the City's brokerage 
firms. To sell securities to the City the firm must be a primary dealer. 

(6) Tax Revenue 

Tax revenue for the year ended December 3 1,2009 is as follows: 

Primary Government 
Special Debt 

General Revenue Service 
Fund Funds Funds Total 

Property taxes $ 13,422,385 3,177,964 6,015.871 22,516,220 
Motor vehicle tax 1,084,313 356,453 510.537 1.951.303 
Payment in lieu of tax 98,459 2.665 5,057 106,181 
Utility franchise taxes 5.872.925 5,872,925 
Sales taxes* 18,476,379 18,416,379 

Tax revenue $ 38.894.461 3,537,082 6.531.465 48,963,008 

*This amount does not include county-wide taxes, which are included as intergovernmental revenues 
in the individual h n d  statements. 
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The City's property tax levies per $1,000 assessed valuation for the year ended December 31, 2009 
were as follows: 

Fund Levy 

Primary government: 
General 
Library 
Recreation 
Debt Service 

Total primary government $ 26.688 

(7) Debt 

The following is a summaiy of long-tenn debt transactions for the year ended December 3 1, 2009: 

Due 
Beginning Ending Within 

Type of Issue Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Governmental activities: 
General obligation bonds 5 83,405,065 3,250,000 9,064,166 77,590,899 9,003.114 
Estimated claims and judgements payable 329.51 1 279,995 609.506 
Accrued vacation and sick pay 5,095,291 3,188,761 2,880.412 5,403,640 2,433,287 
Net OPE5 obligation 190.475 116.311 74,164 

Total primary government 5 89,020,342 6,718,756 12,060.889 83,678,209 11,436.401 

Business-type activities: 
General obligation bonds $ 5.504.935 665,834 4,839,101 561.886 
Revenue bonds 46.290.000 10,385,000 1,685,000 54,990,000 1,965.000 
Long term notes payable 40,144,404 2,385.898 37,758,506 2.472.184 
Accrued vacation and sick pay 1,685,956 1.539.365 1,445,051 1,780.270 934,794 
Net OPE8 obiigation 68,925 42.089 26.836 

Total primary government $ 93.694.220 11,924,365 6,223,872 99,394,713 5,933.864 

The following is a summary of temporary note transactions for the year ended December 31,2009: 

Beginning Ending 
Type of Issue Balance Additions Reductions Balance 

Governmentai activities 
Premium on temporary notes 
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Debt payable, other than claims and judgments and compensated absences, at December 31,2009 is composed 
of the following: 

Debt Issue 

General obligation bonds: 
Internal improvement 
lnternal improvement 
lnternai improvement 
Internal improvement 
lnternal improvement 
lnternal improvement 
Internal improvement 
lnternal improvement 
lntelnai improvement 
Internal improvement 
Refunding 
Refunding 
lnternal Improvement 
lnternal improvement 
Internal improvement 
Internal improvement 
lnternal improvement 
internal improvement 
Internal imDravement 

Date 
Issued 

Date 
Matured 

Interest 
Rate 

Original 
Amount 

Balance At 
End of Year 

Due in 
One Year 

Internal improvement 
lnternal improvement 
lnteinal improvement 

Revenue bands: 

Water and sewerage improvement 

Water and sewerage improvement 

Water and sewerage improvement 

Water and sewerage improvement 

Long term notes payable: 

Kansas Public Wastewater Loan Fund 

Kansas Publlc Water Supply Loan Fund 

Kansas Public Water Supply Loan Fund 

Total primary government 

In 2009, the City issued $3,250,000 of general obligation bonds for paying the costs of certain street, building, 
traffic signal, and other improvements. The General Obligation Bonds, Series 2009-A are due in annual 
installments of $245,000 to $315,000 with interest due in semiannual installments a1 an average rate of 2.80% 
through September 1,2021. 
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In 2009, the City issued $14,120,000 of temporary notes for the purpose of temporarily financing the costs of 
street improvements, intersection improvements, and benefit district projects in the Northwest part of the City. 
The Temporary Notes, Series 2009-1, hear interest of 2.00% and mature October 1, 2010. 

The City intends to redeem all temporary notes outstanding at December 31, 2009 in 2010 from proceeds of 
general obligation bonds andlor other temporary notes issued to finance the improvements. 

General obligation bonds to bepaid with tux levies: 

Principal Interest Total 
Year Due Due Due 

Total $ 77,590,899 15,994,401 

General obligutior? bonds to be paid with e~zterprise revenues: 

Principal Interest Total 
Year Due Due Due 

Total 
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Total general obligation bonds: 

Principal Interest Total 
Year Due Due Due 

Total $ 82,430,000 

Revmue bonds: 
Principal 

Year Due 
Interest Total 

Due Due 

2010 $ 1,965,000 2,586,534 4,551,534 
201 1 2,145.000 2,382,795 4,527,795 
2012 2,210,000 2,304,105 4,514,105 
2013 2,280,000 2,220,860 4,500,860 
2014 2,360,000 2,132,685 4,492,685 

2015-2019 12,860,000 9,141,588 22,001,588 
2020-2024 13,950,000 6,169,830 20,119,830 
2025-2029 10,320,000 3,199,338 13,519,338 
2030-2034 6,900,000 925,105 7,825,105 

Total % 54,990,000 31,062,840 86,052,840 
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Long-term notes payable, State Revolving Loun Fund: 

Principal Interest Total 
Year Due Due Due 

Total $ 37,758,506 

In 2009, the City issued $10,385,000 in Water and Sewage System taxable Direct Pay Build America Bonds. 
The bonds are due in annual installments of $140,000 to $570,000 with interest due in semiannual installments 
at rates of 1.85% to 6.15% through November 1, 203 1. The bonds were issued for the purpose or financing 
various water and sewer system improvements, primarily the constmction of a water tank and the expansion of 
a transmission main. The City will receive 35% of the interest from the U.S. Treasury Department 

The Water and Sewage System Revenue Bonds require that one-sixth of the next interest payment due, one- 
twelfth of the next principal due, and one-sixth of the agent charges next due be set aside monthly in a 
restricted account and that a bond reserve be maintained if net revenues of the Water and Sewer System are 
less than 120% of the maximum annual debt service. A depreciation and emergency account is also to be 
maintained at a minimum of $50,000. The City is in compliance with all requirements. 

Conduit Debt: The City has entel-ed into several conduit debt arrangements wherein the City issues industrial 
revenue bonds to finance a portion of the construction of facilities by private enterprises. In return, the private 
enterprises have executed mortgage notes or leases with the City. The City is not responsible for payment of 
the original bonds, but rather the debt is secured only by the cash payments agreed to be paid by the private 
entesp~ises under the terms of the mortgage or lease agreements. Generally, the conduit debt is arranged so 
that payments required by the private enterprises are equal to the mortgage payment schedule related to the 
original debt. At December 3 1, 2009, total outstanding conduit debt was $22,925,000. 

Lawrence Memorial Hospital Component Unit Debt: 

The following is a summary of the long-term debt of the Lawrence Memorial Hospital, a proprietary fund type 
component unit. This debt is to be paid solely with Hospital revenues. 
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Changes in long term debt transactions: 

Beginning Ending Due Within 
Type of Issue Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year 

Revenue bonds $ 64,084,831 1,532,031 62,552,600 1,630,000 
Retirement plan obligation 678.490 35.034 165,230 548.294 143,241 

$ 64.763.321 35.034 1,697,261 63.101.094 1,773,241 

The City has issued Series 2003 and Series 2006 hospital revenue bonds under a Bond Indenture dated June I, 
1994, as amended and supplemented, to finance expansion and renovation of Hospital facilities, acquire 
equipment and property, refinance a prior bond issue and reimburse the Hospital for certain capital 
expenditures. The issuance of these bonds does not directly, indirectly or contingently, obligate the City, the 
State or any other political subdivision thereof to levy any form of taxation therefore or to make any 
appropriation for their payment. 

Date Intercsf Original Halsncr At I)ue in 
Debt Issue Matured Hate .4mounl End of Year Ornc Year 

17.450.00 
Series 200; 2019 2 5-5.38 S 0 6 12.505000 980,000 

5l,X45.00 
Scriri 2006 2016 50-3 25 0 .19.990.000 650,000 

Total Reumur Bonds 62,495.000 1,630,000 

Annual debt service requirements for hospital revenue bonds as of December 31,2009 are as follows: 

Y e a r  

2010 
201 l 
2012 
201 3 
2014 

2015-2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2034 
2035-2036 

Total 

Pr inc ipa l  Interest  T o t a l  

D u e  D u e  Due 

$ 1,630,000 3,205,863 4,835,863 
1,7 15,000 3,121,912 4,836,912 
1,815,000 3,033,575 4,848,575 
1,905,000 2,940,078 4,845,078 
1,995,000 2,842,088 4,837,088 

11,645,000 12,542,364 24,187,364 
8,6 10,000 9,845,083 18,455,083 

11,475,000 7,349,620 18.824,620 
14,715,000 4,109,182 18,824,182 
6,990,000 539,463 7,529,463 

% 62,495,000 49,529,228 112,024,228 

Arb i t rage  - The Federal Tax Reform Act of 1986 requires issuers of tax-exempt debt to ~nake 
payments to the United States Treasury of investment income received at yields that exceed the 
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issuer's tax-exempt borrowing rates. The U.S. Treasury requires payment for each issue every five 
years. The City has no arbitrage liabilility for tax-exempt debt as of December 31,2009. 

(8) Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 21,  2009 was as follows: 

Beginning Ending 
Balance Increases Decreases Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capitai assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 5 14,516,270 546,888 15,123.158 

Construction in progress 7,037,809 8,091.907 (3.9684621 11,961,254 

Total capital assets, not bemg depreciated 22,414,079 8.638795 (3,968482) 27,084,412 

Capital assets, being depreciated: 

Buildings 54,228,780 292,791 54,527,571 

Improvements other than buildings 29,172,812 147,772 29,320,384 

Machinery and equipment 21,255,949 2.959.230 (327.562) 23.887.617 

Infrastructure 159.484.383 3,631,207 163,115,584 

Total capltal assets being depreciated 264.141.724 7,030,934 (327,562) 270,845,158 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Bulldings 25.155.283 1.777.352 26,932,635 

ImpiOYementS other than buildings 8,889,911 1,204,749 10,094.660 

Machinery and equipment 16,941,663 1,573.470 (266,090) 18,249,043 

Infrastructure 50,876,893 2,986,487 53,863.380 

Total accumulated depreciation 101,863.750 7.542.058 (266.090) 109,139,718 

Total capital assets, belng depreciated, net 762,277,974 (51 1.064) (61.472) 181,705,438 

Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 184,892,053 8,127,731 (4,029.934) 188.789.850 
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Business-type activities: 

Capital assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 

Construction in progress 

Total capital assets. not being depreciated 

Capital assets. being depreciated: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Machinery and equipment 

Total capital assets being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 

Buildings 

Improvements other than buildings 

Machinery and equipment 

Beginning 

Balance Increases Decreases 

Total accumulated depreciation 69,454,161 6,866,166 (66,315) 

Total capital assets, being depreciated. net 168,909,258 (559,920) (15.953) 

Business-type activities capital assets. net $ 203.880.077 3.940.210 (5.287.704) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functionslprograms of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Health 

Social services 

Culture and recreation 

Airpaa 

Total governmental funds 

Capital assets held by the government's internal service funds are 
charged to the various functions based on their usage of the assets 

Total depreciation expense -governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 

Water & sewer 

Sanitation 

Parking 

Storm water 

Golf course 

Total proprietary funds 

Ending 

Balance 
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Interfund Transfers 

A summary of transfers for the year ended December 3 1,2009 follows: 

Receiving Fund 

General 

Special Revenue Funds: 
Guest Tax 
Transportation 
Recreation 
Capital Improvement Reserve 
Equipment Reserve 
Guest Tax Reserve 
Liability Reserve 
Sales Tax Reserve 
Workers Comp Reserve 

Bond & Interest Fund 

Capital Project Fund 

Enterprise Funds: 
Water and Sewer System 
Sanitation 
Public Parking 
Storm Water Utility 

'Transfers In Transfers Out 

Internal Service - Central Maintenance 7,000 
$ 13,469,563 13,469,563 

The City uses interfund transfers both to share administrative costs between funds and to build reserve 
balances in certain special liability funds. 

(11) Commitments and Contingencies 

A. Contract Corn~nitf?zents 

At December 31, 2009, the City had construction contract commitments totaling approximately 
$9,075,259. The City expects to receive the contracted services during fiscal year 2010. 
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B. Insurance 

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destructior~ of 
assets errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Under the City's risk 
management program, the City retains risk for general liability protection, automobile liability 
and up to $300,000 per occurrence ($1,000,000 in aggregate) for each worker's compensation 
claim. The City purchases commercial insurance for claims in excess of the maximum under an 
umbrella policy. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the past 
three fiscal years. 

Claims expenditures and liabilities are reported based on estimates of the amounts needed to pay 
prior and current year claims and to establish a reserve for catastrophic losses. That reserve was 
$3,368,461 at December 31, 2009. The primary government's claims liability reported in the 
Statement of Net Assets at December 31, 2009 was $609,506. The liability reported in the 
financial statements at December 31, 2009 is based on the requirement that liability for claims be 
reported if information prior to the issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable 
a liability has been incurred at the date of the financial statements and that the amount of the loss 
can be reasonably estimated. 

Employee Health Care: The City has established a program to pay medical claims of covered 
current and former City employees and additional health insurance premiums. Liabilities are 
reported when it is probable that claims have been incurred and the amount of the liability can be 
reasonably estimated. Claim liabilities are calculated by the plan adminislrator and are expected 
to be liquidated with expendable available resources. This program is accounted for in an internal 
service fund. 

2009 2008 - 
Unpaid claims, January 1 $ 467,122 497,388 

Incurred claims (including IBNRs) 7,359,869 5,461,579 

Claim payments 7,371,878 5,491,845 

Unpaid claims, December 31 $ 455,113 467,122 

(12) Fund Deficit 

At December 31, 2009, the CDRG Recovery Fund had a fund deficit of $3,953. This deficit is a result 
of program expenditures for which reimbursements have not yet been requested. The Capital Project 
Fund had a deficit of $9,271,901 due to projects for which permanent financing has not yet been 
obtained. 

(13) Cost Sharing Arrangements 

The City has entered into various cost sharing arrangements with Douglas County, Kansas, (the 
County) to provide services and facilities. A listing of those arrangements is as follows: 
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In 1994, the City and the County agreed to combine their emergency communications services with the 
costs of the combined operations to be shared as follows: City 66% and County 34%. This agreement 
was modified in 1997 following the combination of the County emergency medical services and the 
City fire department in 1996 discussed below. 

In 1996, the County emergency medical sewices and the City fire department were combined with the 
City paying 74.36% and the County paying 25.64% of the operating costs of the combined operations. 
The County pays all the cost of buildings and equipment of the ambulance service and the City pays all 
the cost of buildings and equipment of the fire department. As of the effective date of the 1996 
agreement all buildings, equipment and furniture were transferred to the ownership of the City. This 
agreement was later modified in 1997, 1998 and 2005. 

In 1996, the City and the County agreed to share equally in the cost of construction of a health facility 
to house the Lawrence-Douglas County Health Department, the Bert Nash Community Mental Health 
Center and the Douglas County Visiting Nurses Association. The agreement provided that on 
completion the building, equipment and furniture would be owned by the City. This health facility was 
completed and occupied in 1997. A related agreement provides for the City and the County to each 
pay half of the health facility maintenance and operating expenses. 

Also, the County pays 116th of the cost of the City's planning department. 

(14) Net Assets 

The amounts reported on the statement of net assets identified as invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt as follows: 

Total net capital assets 
Less: 

Current portion of general obligation bonds 
Current portion of revenue bonds 
Temporary notes payable 
Noncurrent portion of general obligation debt 
Noncurrent portion of revenue bonds payable 
Noncurrent portion of notes payable 

Add: 
Unspent general obligation bonds and temporary 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

note proceeds 5,500,673 26,310,964 31.81 1.637 
Net assets-invested in capital assets, net of related 
debt 5 102,317,087 131.255.940 233.573.027 

(15) Postemployment Healthcare Plan 

Plan Description. The City operates a single employer defined benefit healthcare plan administered by 
Blue Cross of Kansas in 2009. The Employee Benefit Plan (the Plan) provides medical and dental 
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Funding Policy. The contribution requirements of plan participants and the City are established by the 
City. The required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. For the 
fiscal year ended December 31, 2009, the City contributed $510,000 to the Plan. (approximately 40% 
of total contributions). Plan participants contributed $334,811 to the Plan (approximately 60% of total 
contributions) through their required contributions of 80% of premiums, ranging from $256 to $865 
per month for coverage. 

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation. The City's annual other postemployment benefit 
(OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), 
an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45. The ARC 
represents a level of fundins that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost each 
year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 
thirty years. The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the Plan 
for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and the changes in the City's net OPEB 
obligation to the Plan: 

Annual required contribution $ 549.000 
Interest an Net OPE6 obligation 16.000 
Adjustment to annual required contribution (14.000) 
Annual OPE6 cost 551.000 
Contributions Made (510,000) 

Increase in Net OPE6 obligation 41.000 
Net OPE6 obligation - beginning of year 60.000 

Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 101,000 

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the Plan, and the net OPEB 
obligation for the year ended December 31,2009 was as follows: 

Annual 
Fiscal Annual OPEB Net 
Year OPEB Cost OPEB 

Cost Contributed Oblieation 
December 3 1,2008 $ 527,000 $ 467,000 $ 60,000 
December 3 1,2009 55 1,000 510,000 101,000 

The information for the preceding year was not available. 

Funding Status and Funding Progress. As of the year ended December 31, 2009, the lnost recent actuarial 
valuation date, the Plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $16,186,403 and the 
actuarial value of the asset was $0, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of 
$16,186,403. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $43,646,468, 
and the ratio ofthe UAAL to the covered payroll was 37.1%. 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the 
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plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results 
are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding 
progress, presented as required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statement, will 
present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets (if any) are increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits when such information is 
available. 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan participants) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between 
the employer and plan participants to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include 
techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 

In the year ended December 31, 2009, actuarial valuation, the entry age normal actuarial cost method was 
used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% investment rate of return, which is the rate of the employer's 
own investments as there are no plan assets and initial annual healthcare cost trends of 15.0% for medical, 
15.0% for drugs and 5.0% for dental, reduced by decrements to ultimate rates of 596, 5% and 5% after six 
years. The UAAL is being amortized as a level dollar over an open thirty-year period. 

(16) Prior Year Restatement 

It was determined that the Net OPEB obligation for 2008 was overstated by $199,399. It was also determined 
that inventory in the Water and Sewer Fund in 2008 was understated by $1,084,417. The effect on net assets 
is as follows: 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities 

Net Assets at December 31,2008 as repoited $ 160,089.157 154,801,535 

Increase in inventory valuation 1,084,417 

Decrease in Net OPE6 Obligation 146,416 52,983 

Net Assets at December 31,2008 as restated $ 160.235.573 155,938.935 

The effect on the individual funds is as follows: 

Storm 
Water and Water Public Golf 

Sewer Sanitation Utility Parking - course 

Net Assets at December 31, 2008 as reported S 133,295,183 4,728,664 9,491,980 2.380.837 2021.972 

Increase in inventory valuaton 1,084,417 

Decrease in Net OPE5 Oblgation 25.656 20,660 1,980 4,524 163 

Net Assets at December 31, 2008 as restated S 134,405,256 4,749,324 9,493,960 2,385,361 2,022,135 



City of Lawrence, Kansas 

Other Post-Employment Benetits 
Required Supplementary Information 

December 31,2009 

Schedule of Funding Progress 

UAAL as 
Percent 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial Unfunded Funded Covered of 
Valuation Value of Accrued AAL Ratio Payroll Payroll 

Date Assets (a) Liability (b) - 0 a IN (b-ai/o 
12131120ne; n - $ 4,217,000 $ 4,217,000 $ - $ 40,:92,000 10.5% 
1213 112009 16,186,403 16,186,403 43,646,468 37.1% 

Schedule of Employers Contributions 

Annual 
Fiscal Annual OPEB Net 
Year OPEB Cost OPEB 
&@ - Cost Contributed Oblination 

December 31,2008 $ 527,000 $ 467,000 $ 60,000 
December 31,2009 551,000 5 10,000 101,000 



Nonmaior Governmental Funds 

Special Revenue Funds 
Fund Descriptions 

BUDGETED FUNDS 

Guest Tax Flmd - This fund is used to account for the 5% guest tax received on the occupancy of hotels and 
motels in the City. 

Libruy Fund - This fund is used to account for the tax receipts collected and disbursed to the local public 
library. 

Transportation Fund - This fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures associated with the fixed 
route bus system and para-transit services of the City. 

Recreation Fund- This fund is used to account for user fees derived from recreational and cultural events and 
the expenditures necessary to cany out the recreation programs at the City's four cominunity recreation 
centers. 

Special Alcohol F~lnd - This fund is used to account for one-third of the liquor tax received by the City from 
the State of Kansas. The revenues are used to finance contractual programs for the prevention and treatment of 
drug and alcohol abuse. 

Special Gas Tax Fund - This fund is used to account for the gasoline tax received from the State of Kansas 
and Douglas County. The expenditures are primarily for repairs of streets and to provide for new traffic 
signals. 

Special Recreation Ftmd - This fund is used to account for one-third of the liquor tax received from the State 
of Kansas. These funds are used to provide additional resources for recreational activities and historic tours. 

NONBUDGETED FUNDS 

Airport Iiizprovement Fund -- This fund is used to account for grant proceeds received from the Federal 
Aviation and Administration and the operations of the airport. Revenues are generated from the fixed based 
operator and farming income (K.S.A. 79-2925). 

Capital Improvenzent Reserve F~md T h i s  fund is used to account for major capital improvements which are 
not funded by long-term debt. Transfers from the General Fund provide the resources for these expenditures 
(K.S.A. 12-1,118). 

Equipment Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for major equipment purchases which are not 
budgeted in the operating funds of the Governmental Fund Types or financed with general obligation bonds. 
Transfers from the General Fund provide the resources for these expenditures (K.S.A. 12-1,117). 

Guest Tax Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for funds being reserved for Horizon 2020 (Charter 
Ordinance No. 30). 

Liabiliw Resewe F c m d  This fund is used to account for reserve of the City's self-insured liability programs 
(K.S.A. 12-2615). 

Sales Tux Reserve Fund - This fund is used to account for the City's share of a .O1 cents sales tax levied by 
the county designated for recreational and cultural capital projects and a health facility project (K.S.A. 12- 
1,118). 



Special Revenue Funds 
Fund Descriptions, Continued 

Law Enjorce~nent Gralzt F ~ m d  - This fund is used to account for Local Law Enforcement Block Grant 
received. These funds are used to reduce crime and improve public safety (K.S.A. 12-1663). 

Workem' Compensatioiz Reserve F~md - This fund is used to account for reserves established for the City's 
self-insured workers' compensation (K.S.A. 12-261 5). 

City Parks Memorial Fund - This fund is used to account for donations received from the public to fund 
special requests for landscaping and flower gardens (K.S.A. 79-2925). 

Cemetery Perpetual Care Fund - This fund is used to provide monies for the maintenance of the City 
Cemetery (K.S.A. 12-1408). 

Cemetery ~Ma~rsole~rm Fund - This fund is used to provide monies for the City Mausoleum (K.S.A. 12.1408). 

Housing Trust Fund - This fund is used to acquire, construct, and rehabilitate affordable housing (K.S.A. 12- 
16,114). 

Outside Agency F~~izd - This fund is used to account for grants passed through the outside agencies (K.S.A. 12- 
1663). 

Wee Foks Scholarship F~lnd - The fund was started with a $12,000 donation from the St. Patrick's Day 
Parade organization. The City is to seek matching donations. The fund is to be used to provide scholarships for 
Lawrence youth for recreational activities (K.S.A. 79-2925). 

Fair Housing Assistance Fund- This fund is used to account for federal housing assistance grants received by 
the City. The monies are used to promote fair housing practices in the City and to assure compliance with 
federal regulations governing fair housing practices (K.S.A. 12- 1663). 

CDBG-Recovery Fund - This fund is used Lo account for additional CDBG funding that was received in 
accordance with the ARRA stimulus funding. These funds were used to provide assistance to low and 
moderate income individuals and areas in the City (K.S.A. 12-1663). 

Comnzrrnify Developnzent Fund - This fund is used to account for federal block grants received and related 
program income. These funds are used to provide assistance to low and moderate income individuals and areas 
in the City (K.S.A. 12-1663). 

Rehabilitation Escrow Fund- This fund is used to account for federal grants received to provide assistance Lo 
homeowners for improvements to properties in targeted neighborhoods (K.S.A. 12-1663). 

Ifome Prograin Fund - This fund is used to account for federal funds received to assist low income I-esidents 
to purchase homes (K.S.A. 12-1663). 

Truizsportation Plaizning Fund - This fund is used to account for federal grants received for urban 
transportation planning (K.S.A. 12-1663). 

Law Enforcenzent Trust Ftmrl- This fund is used to account for proceeds from the sale of assets forfeited in a 
legal proceeding. Receipts in the fund are used to defray the cost of complex investigations, purchase technical 
equipment or provide matching funds for federal grants (K.S.A. 60-41 17). 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Curb 
1 " ~ e l l l l l e l l ~  

Rccciiallles: 
Tuxes 
1nferg"vemmentrl 
Accoilllti 
Loans 
Accrued illtcrcsf 

Total rrscti  

Liabilities and Fund B ~ l r n c c r  

Liabililies. 
Accounts psvsblc 
Accrued puyoll 
Due to a d ~ e r  funds 
Deferred reienue 

Total liabiliiici 

Fund balances: 
Resewed for encumbrvnces 
Rerened far 1orni 
Resenled For donor irstriction 
Ulireiewed: 

Derlgrlated for 1uries 
Undciignrfcd 

Tofri liabilities and 
fund balances 

Coilibilliilg Balailce Sheet 
Noili~lajor Govermnental Fuiids 

December 31,2009 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Li~bi l i f ies and Furad Balanccr 

Liabilities: 
*CC"L""I payable 

Accrued payroll 
Due lo other fiandr 
Dcfened reiesue 

Toiri l i rbi l i l ici 

Fund balmccs: 

Rmcn,ed for eliomlbrances 
Rescwcd far loans 
Reserved lo, donor restrictio,, 
Unrrscrrrd: 

Dcsignafcd for loires 
U~~dcsignafed 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Noiu~~ajor Govelml~ental Funds, Continued 

December 3 1.2009 

To,*, 
Clhy Cenleler? Fair La* Nonmr~ur 

r~rlri ~rrnrtvr i  c c m a r n  lloaring outside \ v e e ~ o l b  H ~ U S ~ O ~  CIIBC Carnmun,~~ Rrlvrhiiirrlian ~ o m e  ~ r r n s p o r t a r i o ~ ~  ~ ~ ~ i ~ ~ ~ r ~ ~ ~ ~ t  ~ u , . ~ ~ ~ ~ t ~ ~  

h1cniori.l Care hlrllrolcum Trust Aeonc? Scllolrrrhin i\nalmte Reco\rry Deielopna.nl #:siron ------ ProOrrm P l r n " i " ~  'Trust ---- Funds 

$ 72.832 132.779 4.203 102.184 84.660 63,417 132,926 7R 274 4.130 10,789 42 12,433 5,252,635 
- - - - 99,926 - - - - - ~. - 14,099,972 

Total liabililiei and 
fund brlaucei 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Rovenuor. 
Tries 
Chrrgor ior serlcer 
rincs. larieiturri rndprnlluci 
,n,cres, 
ll2lCrgairmmcniai 
Mircrilancous 

Tau, incnuci 

Expmdilurrs 
GenErll goiEmmrnl 

P ~ l r l l i  rliely 
Public works 
Hoallll 
soma1 r m , c i s  
Cularc and recrnlion 
Tourism 

Fri,,cip~xl reclreme", 

intercrt md niill daigci 

Talrl srpendiarei 

Exccis (dc t ien iy )  oirnmues 
a\or (under) ei~"diCurei 

Coinbi~iilig Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes iii Fund Bala~ices 
Noruliajor Govenlinelital Fonds 

Year elided Decelilber 31,2009 

Special Roenu* 

c~pmral ~ u e l r  ~ r r  \vorken( 
Glirsl Special Specirl Sl,ecirl AilpurC I l n ~ r o r ~ m c n f  iKyuvsle%~i Tax 1,irbilii) SalorTar Enrurccmrcll Conlncnlrlinn 
Try  L i b r a n  Trmqmrtrtion Recreation hlrohul CarTax Roircation Improuemcnr Rercrre Rcrorrc Rarrve Reserve R r ~ e r i e  Reserve - 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Combi~iil~g Statenlent of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances 
No~ul~ajor Gover~unental Funds, Co~~t i~ iued  

Year ended Deceliiber 31, 2009 

Special ~ e v e n u e  Total 

Cil? Cenloter? Faar L a r  Ponmrivr 
Parks Pernelurl Ccmctcr? Houilm~g Outiidc F novrlng CDBG con~inanit: ~ ~ h ~ b i i i c r c ~ o ~ ~  H O ~ C  rranrportailon rnrortcrnmt ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~ i ~ l  

l leniorir l  care blr"nll.um Trust ---- hernrr Schoiarshlp Anr8n;lnce Rcralrr? Development E I E ~ O , ~  Plosrrrn Phllllino - Trust Funds 

Neb rlringein fund bairnrri 2 . 2 s  (59.591) - 1.118 87.155 12,191 

iund b4irnce, bogiilningarycar ,0574 19i.362 d . 2 ~  1 ~ 0 7 2 6  i i 2 . i i i  irl.aio ---- 
Fund brl'mir. cnd01393r S 71.511 132.779 1.203 l02, iSI 239.707 16JIi-I ---- 

See independent auditor's report on the basic fina~~cial statements. 
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CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Revcnues: 
Taxes 
Special asscss~nelils 
In*".." ,L.LSL 

I~itel-govc~nmental 
Misccllweoiis 

T'otal revenues 

Expenditures: 
Principal retirelnent 
liltcrest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

Bond and Intcrcst Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budgct and Actual 

Year Elided December 3 1,2009 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for 2008) 

2009 
Variance 

Original Fisal Positive 2008 
Budget Budeet Actual (Neeative) Actual 

Excess (dcfic~ency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures (3,740,907) (3,740,907) (944,441) 2,796,466 (249,613) 

Otlier finzncing so~ivces: 
'Transfers in - - 102,271 102,271 1,667,570 
Issuance oi'gcncral obligation bonds - - - - 8,120,000 

Total atlier financing sources (uses) - - 102,271 102,271 9,787,570 

Excess (deficiency) of rcveniies and othcr 
sourcks over (uider) expeilditilics and 
otller uses $ (3.740.907) (3,740,9071 (842,170) 2,898,737 9,537,957 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Net change in rcscrve for encumbrances 

Fund balance, end of year 

Scc independent auditor's report on the basic tinancial statements 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Guest Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year Ended December 3 1,2009 
(With Compai-ative Actual Amouiits for 2008) 

Variance 
Original Revised Positive 2008 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Revenues - intergoveunmenlal $ 846,300 846,300 850,604 4,304 917,859 

Expenditures: 
Tourisill - co~ltractual services 691,800 691,800 732,862 (41,062) 739,960 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(~ulder) expenditures 154,500 154,500 117,742 (36,758) 177,899 

Other fillancing (uses) - 
transfers out 

Excess (defic~ency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures and other uses $ - - 4,304 4.304 27,899 

Fund balance, beginning of year 316.118 288,219 

Fund balance, end of year $ 320.422 316.118 

See illdependell1 auditor's report on the basic financial statements 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Revenues: 
Taxes 
Intergovemn~ental 

Total revenues 

Libray Special Revenue FLIII~ 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year Ended December 31,2009 
(With Comparative Actual A~nounts for 2008) 

Variance 
Original Revised Positive 2008 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Expenditt~lres: 
General govern~nent - contractual services 3,051,000 3,051,000 3,051,000 - 3,021,000 

Total expenditures 3,051.000 3,051,000 3,051,000 - 3,021,000 

Excess (def~ciency) of revenues over 
(under) expend~tures $ 112.582) (12.582) (32,779) 120,197) 6,382 

Fund balance, beginning of year 141,130 134,748 

Fund balance, end of year $ 108.351 141.130 

See independent audito~.'s report on the basic financial statenlents. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Rcvenues: 
Taxcs 
Chdracs for servlces - 
Intergovernmental 
Miscella,~eous 

Transportation Special Rcvenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenucs, Expenditiires and Changes 

in Fond Balance - Budget and Actilal 

Year Endcd December 3 1,2009 
(With Coniparative Actual Amounts for 2008) 

-"", 

Variance 
Original Revised Positive 
Butleet Budget Actual (Nerative) 

Total rcvenues 907,000 907,000 362,446 (544,554) 

Expenditures: 
General governiiient 

Personal scl-vices 
Contract~ial service 
Commodities 

Total expenditures 2,425,484 2,801,472 2,071.878 729,594 

Exccss (deficiency) oirevenucs over 
(under) cxpcnd~t~~res  ( IS1  8,484) (1,894,472) (1,709,432) 185,040 

Other financ~ng sourccs - transfers 111 1,503,950 1,879,938 1,592,756 (287,182) 

Excess (deficiency) of i-evcnucs over 
(under) expenditures and otlicr uses $ 114.534) 114.5341 (1 16,676) (102.142) 

Fund balance, bcg~iin~tig of ycar 
Net changc 111 reserve Sor encumbrances 

Fund balance, end of year $ 389.292 

2008 
Actual 

Scc indcpcndcnt auditor's report on the basic financial statements. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Recreation Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule o f  Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year Ended December 3 1 ,2009 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for 2008) 

2009 
Variance 

Origi~lal Revised Positive 2008 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Taxes 
Charges for services - 
Intergovernmental 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Culture and reel-cation: 

Personal services 
Contractrtal service 
Commoditics 
Capital outlay 
Other 

Total cxpcndltilres 

Excess (dcfic~ency) o f r e v e ~ i ~ ~ e s  over 
(undci-) cxpendltures 

Other financing sources - transfers in 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(iinder) expeliditures and other uses 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Net change in reserve for enci~mbrances 

Fund balancc, ctid of yea1 

See independent auditor's report on the basic financial statements 



CITY O F  LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Special Alcohol Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year Ended December 3 1 ,  2009 
(With Comparative Actual Amou~lts for 2008) 

2009 
Variance 

Original Revised Positive 2008 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

- 

Kevenues - ~lltergovernrnental $ 594,228 594,228 615,744 21,516 638,887 

Expe~idik~res: 
Health: 

Personal services 
Conisactual service 
Commodities 
Other 

Total expenditures 577,150 577,150 545,961 31,189 631,655 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(under) expenditures $ 17.078 17.078 69,783 52.705 7,232 

Fund balance, begiivl~liing of year 95,770 88,538 

Fund balance, end of year $ 165.553 95.770 

See independent auditor's report on the basic tinallcia1 statements 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, I M 7 S A S  

Revenues 
Intergover~~~uei~tal 
Miscellaneous 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Public works: 

Personal services 
Contractual service 
Commodities 
Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Special Gas Tax Special Revenue Fund 
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes 

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 

Year Ended December 3 1,2009 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for 2008) 

Excess (defic~ency) ofrevenues 
over (undei-) expenditures 

Fund balance, beginning of year 
Net change in reserve for e~lcumbrances 

Fund balance, end of year 

2009 
Variance 

Original Revised Positive 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative1 

2008 
Actual 

See independent auditor's repoit on the basic fillancia1 statements. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, IUNSAS 

- 
in Fund ~ a l a n c e  - dudget and Actual 

Year Ended December 3 1,2009 
(With Comparative Actual Amounts for 2008) 

2009 
Variance 

Oriainal Revised Positive 2008 
Budget Budget Actual (Negative) Actual 

Reyvennes - i~:trrgove~~nme~~ta! $ 594,228 594,228 615,744 21,516 640,887 

Expenditures: 
Culture auld recreation: 

Personal services 48,605 45,925 45,924 1 45,779 
Contractt~al service 290,500 332,818 347,801 (14,983) 367,330 
Conlmodities 81,000 98,721 94,374 4,347 98,729 
Capital outlay 160,000 102,641 71,745 30,896 72,992 
Other 10,000 10,000 - 10,000 - 

Total expenditures 590,105 590,105 559,844 30,261 584,830 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over 
(1111der) expenditures $ 4.123 4.123 55,900 51.777 56,057 

Fund balance. beginning of year 126,719 111,748 
Net change ill reserve for encunlbrances 20,730 (41,086) 

Fund balance, end of year $ 203.349 126.719 

See independent auditor's report 011 the basic fi~~ancial  statements 
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NONMAJOli PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 

Enterprise Funds are used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to 
private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is that the costs of providing goods or 
services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily Lhrough user charges; or 
where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of net income is appropriate for 
accountability purposes. 

Public Parking Fcmd - This h n d  is used to account for the operation of all parking facilities owned by the 
City. 

Go!f Colirse F~md - This fund is used to record the activities of Eagle Bend Golf Course, a publicly owned 
facilily. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

ASSC~S 
Current assets: 

Cash 
I I I V C S ~ ~ ~ ~ C ~ ~ ~ S  
Rcceiuablcs: 

Accoui~ts 
Accriied interest 

Invento~.ies 
Total cul-rent assets 

('apilal assets 
l.nnd 
Ruildinga and improvements 
Equlpmcnt 
Accumulated depiecislion 

Total capital asscts 

Talal assets 

Combining Balance Sheet 
Nonn~ajor Enterprise Funds 

December 3 1. 2009 

Total 

Nunmajor 
Public Gol f  Entel.prisc 

Perkitle Course Fusds 

I.iabilities and Net Asscts 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable $ 11,981 14,733 26,714 
Accrued payroll 2'1,202 10,998 40,200 
Accrued vacation and sick pay 42.287 23,618 65.'105 

Total ci~rrcnt liabiiittes 83,470 49,349 132.819 

Noncun.ent liabilities 
Compensated absences 
Nct  OPEB obligation 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total Iiabilitbes 134.396 67.103 201.499 

Net assets: 
Invested in capital assets, net ofdebt I928.902 1,624,302 3,553,204 
U#I I~~S~I~~C~C~ 158,395 305.758 464.153 

Total net assets 2,087,297 1.030.060 4.01 7,357 

Total liabilities and 
,net assets $ 2.221.641 1,997,163 421X.XS6 

See independent auditor's report 011 the basic financial statements 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Assets - Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 

For the Year Ended December 3 1,2009 

Notl~najor 
Public Golf Et~tc~.prise 

park in^ Course Funds 

Opcrilring revenues - cliarges for 
scrvices 8: 1,013,5')6 919,416 1,933,012 

Opcl-aiing expenses: 
Continuing operalions 1,141,248 826,217 1,967,465 
Dcpreciatioii and a~nortiratio~i 151.105 186,883 337.988 

Total operating expenses 1,292,353 1,013,100 2.305.453 

Opcralitig income (loss) (278.757) (93,684) (372,441) 

Nonopcrating revenues (expenses) 
IIIICTCS~ incocme - 1,145 1,145 
Other 3.586 464 4,050 

lilcorne (loss) beroic 
ti-aosrcrs (275,171) (92,075) (367,246) 

Transfers (out) (22,893) - (22,893) 

rhange in nct assets (298,064) (92,075) (390,13'1) 

Net assets, beginning of year 2,385,301 2,022,135 4,407,496 

Nel assets, end of year $ 2.087.297 1.930.060 4.017.357 

See independent auditor's report on the basic fi~iancial statenlents. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
Nonlnajor Enterprise Funds 

For the Year Ended December 3 1,2009 

Nonlnaiol. 
I'ablic Go l f  Clltcml.isc 

Parkimn~ Coc~rsc 17asds 

Cash l1011s from operating al;firirics: 
Rcc~ ip fs  flolll C L L S ~ ~ I C ~ S  and users S 1,023.386 919,845 1,943231 
i'aymeats to supplien (282,014) (340,089) (622,108) 
I'.IYII~CIIU to employees (837.7741 (457.160! (1294.934) 

Ncl curl1 provided by (used in) operating activiticr (96.407) 122.596 26.189 

Cnri? 11011s from ca1,iml and related financing rctivi l ier: 
Acquisitioii i l l id c o i i s t r u ~ t i ~ i i  of capital assets -. (17,405) (17.4n5) 

Ne, casll provided b y  (used in) 
i ~ ~ v e r t i l i g  act~vit ies 

Net  illoresac (decrease) i n  cash 

Cash and cs ih  equivuleals. begiilliing o f  year 

CISII and cvsll cqaivalcntr. endor ycai 

11~1"nciliati0n o f  o,,erati,,g i,,con,c Lo "el earl, 
l lrnvided (used) by ol,crrling relivif ics: 
Ollernling illcollie (loss) S (278,757) (93,684) (372.441) 

A<i,llartme,,ts to rccalicile operu,ieg illcollie (loss) 
lo ,net crs11 provided b y  (used in) opeiuta~g ~iciivities: 

Depreciuliull and n n ~ o n i z u d o ~ ~  erprnsc 151.105 186,883 337,988 
Otlicr iiicalile 5,248 464 5.712 
c1,n,,ye i l l :  

Accou~its receivuh1e 4,842 (35) 4,507 
iilveiifoties of ~ ~ p l l l i c s  - 20.017 20,017 
Accounts payable 3.494 3.215 6,709 
Accruedpuyroll 8.349 1.987 10,336 
Accrued vvcvl~ol lv l id  sick pay 8,682 3,711 12,397 
Net OPEB ob1lgvtioil 930 34 904 

Total ariiuitnlelltr 182,350 216.280 398.<,30 

Net cvrll pnli,idcd b y  (used ill) 
o ~ c ~ l f i i l g  activities S i96.4071 I22 596 76.IR4 

See independent auditor's report on the basic fi~ia~icial statements. 



INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS 

Internal Service Funds are used to account for the fmancing of goods or services provided by one department 
or agency to other departments or agencies of the governmental unit, or to other governmental units, on a cost- 
reimbursement basis. 

Ceiztral Mainteizance F u n d  This fund accounts for the repairs and maintenance expenses of the City's fleet 
of vehicles and equipment. 

Storev Fcrnd - This fund accounts for the purchase of office supplies. 

Health Insrrrance Fcmd - This fund accounts for the payment of health insurance claims. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

ASS& 
Current assets: 

Cash 
Invcstrncnts 
Receivables: 

Accounts 
Accrued istcrert 

Inventories 
I'atal current assets 

Capital assets 
Buildings and i~nprovernents 
Equipment 
Accurnulatcd depreciation 

Total capital assets 

lotal assets 

C o l n b i n i n g  Balance Sheet 
Internal Service Funds 

December 31,2009 

Ccntral Health 
Maintenance Stores lnsuratncc Total 

Liabilities and > e t  Assets 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities 

Accounts payable S 3.378 - 81.875 85.253 
Claims payable - - 455.113 455.1 13 
Accrued payroll 35.856 - - 35,856 
Accrued vacation and sick pay 69.936 - - 69.936 

Total current liabilities 109.170 - 536.988 646.158 

Nolicurrent liabilities - compensated abscnccs 79.934 - - 79.934 

Total liabilities 189.104 - 536.988 726.092 

Net ussets: 
Invested in capital assets. net ofdebt 266,259 - - 266.259 
Unrestricted 895.918 33.764 7.095.910 8.025.592 

Total net assets 1.162.177 31764 7.095.9 10 8.291.85 l 

Total liabilities and 
nst assets 

See independent auditor's report on the basic financial statements 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Combining Statelllent of 12evenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Assets - Internal Service Funds 

For the Year Ended Decenlber 31,2009 

Central Flcalth 
Maislet~nnce Stores Ina~~ranec Total 

Opcriiting revenues - chill-ges for 
sc~.viccs S 3,218,303 5,239 7,757,780 10,981,382 

Op~~a:i;;g e;pe:;ses: 
Continuing operations 3,087,114 5,190 - 3,092,304 
Ge~~eraI  adminislration - - 836,339 836,339 
I lealth insurance claims - - 7,371,878 7,371,878 
Depreciation and arnol.tization 30,077 - - 30.977 

Tnlal opcratillg expenses 3.1 18,091 5,IqO 8.208.217 11,331,498 

Ollcratilig itlcolne (loss) 100,272 49 (450.437) (350.1 16) 

Nunopcratlng revenoes (expenses) 
li~tcrest i\?coine 1,876 - 14,937 16,813 
Federal grants 13,400 13,400 
Galo (loss) on salc ofcapital asscts 3,038 - ... 3,038 
Other 22,748 .. 22,748 

Tolal nonopel-atlng 
tcvenues (expenses 41.062 - 14,937 55.999 

llrcomc (loss) before 
lronsfers 141,334 49 (435,500) (294.1 17) 

Ti-ansfcrs ortl (7,000) - ~- (7,000) 

Change in net assels 134,334 49 1435,500) (301.117) 

Ncl ahicls (deficit), heginning 
ulycal- 1,027,843 33,715 7.531.410 8,592,068 

Ncl assels (deficit), cnd of 
year 

See independent auditor's report on the basic financial statements 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Cwh tlonvr from operating ac*iritl~r: 

Combining Statement of Cash Flows 
Intellla1 Service Funds 

For the Year Ended December 3 1,2009 

Nci r'aslx proi,icIcd by (used 111) operating activities 

('as13 t10,vs fro," trllitai r,,<l related fi,,.lnci,,g activiticr: 
Acqt~isilioli and cosslruetion of capital assets 
Plocecds fmni aslcs of capital assets 
Plocccris h l l i  capllvl Jralif 

Xct cadi provided by (used ili) capital and 
related fi!>anci~~g activities 

Carla ~ o n a  R-urn in\,cstlng acllvifirr: 
Receipt of i1,tcrcst and dividelldj 
IP,,,CI,;ISCS ~fi i i~esfl l lei l ts  
Sales ofiaueshilcnts 

Ne, cvrll provided by (iised ill) 
i n v e ~ t i ~ ~ g  x t i v ~ a e s  

Net mcreasc (decrease) ill cash 

(;is11 a~id  cadi equivale~lts, bcgiiinllig of yea7 

(Is11 and cnsli eq~ii~ale8lf~.  end of year 

I<~~", ,~l l i . l i"~,  0s ~ p ~ l l l i l l g  Inconll to net CPSI, 
prnvidod (arcd) by ~(lrrr t ingrcl ivi t ies:  
o p e r v t ~ l l g  illcolilr (loss) 

A<Ijllasol,ellti to recollcile operalillg illcollie (loss) 
to #let casll proiidid by (used in) operuling activifici: 

Dcl,rcciution and ililloirila,i"ll CIpCIISC 
Otller i,,co,ile 
Cllallge ill: 

Accauars receivable 
~ ~ , ~ ~ ~ t ~ n ~ ~  
Accouso puyable 
Clviil~s payable 
Accruedpuyroil 
Accri8cd vscnfioil and sick &pay 

'Sola1 adjitrl~r>eiits 

Net cash provided by (ascd in) 
olierstil~g activities 

Ccntrrl l l c a l t l ~  
h l a i ~ ~ t c ~ ~ a n r c  St~r1.e~ I n s u r a n c e  Total 

See independent a u d i t o l . ' ~  report on the basic f i l l a n c i a 1  statements. 



AGENCY FUNDS 

Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the government as an agent for individuals, private 
organizations, other governments andlor other funds. 

Payroll Clearing Fzmd - This fund is used to account for withholdiilgs from payroll pending payment to 
outside agencies. 

M~micbal  Court Fund - This fund is used to account for cash bonds paid by defendants. 

KPRF Fzmd - This fund is used by the Parks and Recreation Department to purchase tickets, pay travel agents 
and pay for other reimbursable expenses. 

Fire I~zsurance Proceeds Fztlzd - This fund accounts for insurance proceeds received and held by the City until 
the affected property is demolished. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Combining Stateiueilt of Chai~ges ill Assets and Liabilities - 
All Agency Fu~lds 

Year Ended Decenlber 3 1, 2009 

Balance Balance 
January 1,  December 31, 

Payroll Clearing 2009 Additions Deductions 2009 

Assets: 
Cadi 
Accounts receivable 

Liabilities: 
Acco~mts payable 

Municipal Court 

Assets: 
Cash $ 275.292 912;553 853,145 334,700 
Restricted assets - comt receivables 70,683 - - 70,683 

$ 345.975 912,553 853,145 405.383 

Liabilities: 
Accou~lts payable $ 275,292 912,553 853,145 334,700 
Payable f iomres~icted assets 70,683 - - 70,683 

Assets: 
Cash 

Liabilities: 
Accou~lts payable 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, ICANSAS 

Co~~ibiniilg Statement of Chai~ges ill Assets and Liabilities - 
A11 Agency Funds, Co~lti~lued 

Year Ended December 3 1,2009 

Balance Balance 
January 1, December 31, 

Fire Insurance Proceeds Fund 2009 Additions Deductions 2009 

Assets: 
Cash 

Liabilities: 
Acco~c~lts payable $ - 105,904 - 105,904 

Totals -All  Agency Funds 

Assets: 
Cash $ 306,661 20;930,365 20,763;650 473,376 
Acco~u~ts receivable 277 - - 277 
Resn'icted assets - court receivables 70;683 - - 70,683 

Total assets !S 377,621 20,930,365 20,763,650 544,336 

Liabilities: 
Acco~uits payable $ 306,938 20,930;365 20,763;650 473,653 
Coiut bonds payable 70.683 - - 70,683 

Total liabilities 

See independent auditofs report 011 the basic fina~cial statements. 
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Statistical Section 

The Statistical Section provides additional information to aid in the understanding of the 
financial statements, note disclosures, and supplementary information for the City of Lawrence. 

Contents 

Financial Trends 
These schedules help the reader undersland how the city's financial performance has changed 

over time. 

Revenue Capacity 
These schedules help the reader assess the status of the city's property tax 

Debt Capacity 
These schedules help the reader assess the city's current levels of outstanding debt and the city's 

ability to issue additional debt. 

Economic and Demographic Information 
These schedules help the reader understand the economic environment within which the city's 

financial activities take place. 

Operating Information 
These schedules help the reader understand how the information in the city's financial report 

relates to the services the city provides. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the infoimation in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive 
annual fillancia1 reports for the relevant year. 



SCHEDULES OF FINANCIAL TRENDS INFORMATION 

The objective of financial trends information is to assist the reader in understanding how the City 
of Lawrence's financial position has changed over time. As a result, two tables are presented. Table 1 
shows Net Assets for the last seven years. Table 2 shows the Changes in Net Assets for the last seven 
years. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Net Assets by Component 

Last Seven Fiscal Years 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Unaudited 

Fiscal Year 
2003 - 2004 - 2005 - - ZOO6 - 2007 - 2008 - 2009 

Governmental activities 
Invested in capital assets, nct of related debt S 95,987,404 96,155,168 88,244,646 93;600,687 94,219,394 98,756,330 102,317,087 
Restricted 14,384,175 15,400,474 16,818,165 22,969,523 31,135,946 30,181,056 17,954,391 
Unrestricted 23,957,026 29,880,265 42,743,594 36,620,613 38.700,080 30,196,881 3 1,166,420 

Total governmental activities net assets S 134,328,605 141,435,907 147,806,405 148,175,691 155,888,997 160,089,157 163,664,563 -- 
Business-type activities 

Invested in captial assets, nct of related debt $ 86,737,639 87,256,373 74,845,227 91,982,752 100,856,193 130,121,705 13 1,255,940 
Restricted 5,909,170 6,906,197 17,732,915 16,877,071 27,230,548 19,865,967 
Unrestricted 34,841,198 39,199,131 47,994,157 42,242,043 26,203,996 4,813,863 24,874,340 

Total business-type activities net assets S 127,488,007 133,361,701 140,572,299 151,101,866 154,290,737 154,801,535 156,130,280 
P -- P 

Primary government 
Invested in captial assets, nct of related debt $ 182,725,043 183,411,541 163,089,873 385,583,439 195,075,587 228,878,035 233,573,027 
Restricted 20,293,345 22,306,671 34,551,080 34,83 1,462 50,200,071 51,001,913 30,181,056 
Unrestricted 58,798,224 69,079,396 90 > 737 L 751 78,862,656 64,904,076 35,010,744 56,040,760 

Total primary govcrnmcnt net assets 5 261,816,612 274,797,608 288,378,704 299,277,557 310,179,734 314,890,692 319,794,843 
PPP P 

Note: Data became available with the inception of GASB 34 during fiscal year 2003, therefore I 0 years of data is 
unavailable. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Clianges in Net Assets 

Last Seven Fiscal Years 
(accri~al basis of accounting) 

Erpcnses 
Governmental aclivilics 

General government 
Public safely 
Public works 
Health 
Social scrvices 
Culture and recreation 
Toi~iirm 
Airporl 
Interest on long-term debt 

ToVal governmental activities enpcnses 

Business-type activities: 
Water & sewer 
Sanitation 
Parking 
Stomiwatel- 
Golf course 

Total business-type activities expenses 

Total primary government expenses 

Program Revenues 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for scwices: 
General government 
I'ubiic safety 
Culture and recreation 
Otheracti~ities 

Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

Tatal governmental activities program revenues 

Business-typc activities: 
Charges for services: 

Water & sewer 
Sanitation 
Parking 
Stonnwater 
Golf course 

Fiscal Year 
2003 - 2004 - 2005 2006 2007 2008 - 2009 - 

(continued) 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Changes in Net Assets, Continued 

Last Scven Fiscal Yeal-s 
(accrual basis of accounting) 

Unaudited 

2003 2004 2005 
Ooerariiin wants and contributions 27.173 33.826 " - 
Capital grants and contributions 60,944 

Total business-type activities program revenues 35,090,356 34,559,293 37,655,122 

Total prirnaty gavelnment program icvcnues S 56,895;159 56,410,267 60,440,597 

Net (enpensejlrcvenue 
Governmental activities $ (38,891,740) (41,132,645) (45,194,885) 
Business-type act~vities 8;227,527 6,421,973 7,336,850 

Total primary government net expense $ (30;564,213) (34;710,672) (37,858,035) 

General Revenues and Other Changes i n  
R-et Assets 

Gavcmrnental aclivities: 
Taxes 

Properly tares $ 17,604,825 20.91 1,051 
Franchise laxcs 3,660,489 3,684,941 
Sales taxes 18,893,835 20,7402306 

Unl-estl-icted :ruits and contributions 51 8,024 530,786 
Investment eaii~iogs 1,207,797 980,553 
Miscellaneous 86.437 (49.408) 
Transfers 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Unrestricted grants and contributions 
investment earnings 657,587 531,703 1,449,433 
Miscellaneous 363,740 318,358 
Transfen (1,288,000) (1,441,718) (1,892,038) 

Total business-type activ~tlcs (630,413) (546,275) (124,247) 

Total prirnai-y govelninent $ 42,525,994 47,693,672 51,441,136 

Change i s  Net Assets 
Governmental activitics 
Business-type aclivities 

Total primary govcmment 

Fiscal Year 
2006 2007 2008 2009 

16,844 
85,160 

41,173,148 41.337,180 12,059.845 43,610,858 

67,166,765 66,345,621 63,522.690 66,737,476 

Note: Data became available with the inception of GASB 34 during fiscal ycar 2003, therefore 10 years of data is 
unavailable. 



SCHEDULES OF REVENUE CAPACITY INFORMATION 

The objective of the revenue capacity information is to assist the reader in understanding the 
factors affecting the City of Lawrence's ability to generate its own-source revenue. As a result, seven 
tables of data are presented. Most of the tables contain ten years of data. Table 3 shows tax revenues by 
source. Table 4 shows the fund balances of the governmental funds. Table 5 shows the changes in fund 
balances. Table 6 provides the assessed and estimated actual property valuations. Table 7 shows the 
direct and overlapping property tax rates. Table 8 lists the ten largest property tax payers. Table 9 
provides a histoly of property tax collections. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Geueral Governnie~it Tax Reveliues by Source 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Unaudited 

Motor 
Property Sales Franchise Vehicle Payment- 

Year Tax Tax (1) Tax Tax in-lieu Total 

(1) Excludes City's share of county-wide sales tax which is reported as intergover~lrne~ital revenue 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Fund Balances of Governmental Furids 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Unaudited 

Fiscal Year 
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

General Fund 
Reserved $ 1,458,930 787.810 727.909 1,014.374 905,414 854.863 850.300 807,314 919.854 266.473 
Unreserved 9,577,868 10.374.335 8,919.482 8.164.583 12,922,924 14,472,880 11.083.748 11,449,526 12,224.367 12.564.947 

Total General Fund $ 11,036,798 11,162,145 9,647,391 9,178,957 13.828.338 15,327,743 11,934,048 12,256.840 13.144.221 12,831,420 

All other governmental funds 
Reserved $ 9,401.662 8,300,491 7,720,844 8,098,465 9,072,450 8,596.569 7.858.766 8,366.671 17,978,096 17.239.307 
Unreserved, reported in: 

Special revenue funds 13,656,156 15,186.930 14,759,541 74,299,935 14,501,703 15,253,024 15,959,348 15.389.830 16,938,468 18,602,507 
Capital projects funds 6,863,034 (9,556.787) (7,091,096) 5,652,282 1.618.585 (10.419.107) (6,221,334) (745,650) (2,938,975) (9.271.901) 

Total all other governmental fund $ 29,920.852 13.930.634 15,389.289 28,050.682 25,192,738 13,430,486 17,596,780 23,010,851 31,917,589 26.569.913 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Changes in Fund Balances of Goverl~mel~tal Funds 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 
(modified accrual basis of accounting) 

Table 5 

Fiscal Year 
2002 2003 2001 3005 - 2006 2007 2008 2009 

Taxes 
Speciai assess~nents 
Liceiises and pennits 
Charges for services 
Fincs, forfeitures and penalties 
Interest 
lntergovernlncnlal 
Reinlbursements 
Miscellaneous 

Total Revenues 

Expenditures 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Health 
Social services 
Culture and recreation 
Tourism 
Airport 
Capilal outlay 
Debt sewice: 

Principal retirement 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total enpmdilures 

Excess of revenues over 
(undcr) expeodtlul-es 

Othcr  financing sources (uses) 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Plncceds ofgeneral obligation bands 

Total other finallcing sources (uses) 

Net change in fund balances 

Debt service as a percentage of 
noncapitai expenditures 



C I T Y  OF LAWRENCE,  KANSAS 

Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Property 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Real Property Personal Property (1) State Assessed Total Ratio of 
Assessed to 

Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Assessed Estimated Estimated Actual 
Year Value Actual Value Value Actual Value Value Value Value Actual Value Value 

Total 
Direct 
Tax 
Rate 

( I )  Excludes motor vehicles 

Source: Douylas County Appraiser 
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CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Taxpayer 

Westar Energy 
Walmart 
Southwestern Bell 
Packerware Carp 
Hallmark Cards 
Lawrence Paper Co. 
Illland Western Lawrence 
World Company 
Cellia~ice 
Sauer Da~ifoss US Compa~iy 
Kresge 
Oread Labs 
NCS 
Target 

Total 

Type of Business 

Electric Utility 
Retail Outlet 
Telephone Utility 
Plastics Manufacturer 
Card Manufacturer 
Paper Manufacturer 
Retail Center 
Media 
Biotechnology 
Manufacturer 
District Warehouse 
Research Lab 
Computer Services 
Retail Outlet 

Principal Taxpayers 

December 3 1.2009 

2009 Percent of 
Assessed Total Assessed 

Valuation Rank Valuation 

$ 8,068:889 1 0.95 % 
5,438,110 2 0.64 
5,322,552 3 0.62 
4,777,935 4 0.56 
4,334,070 5 0.51 
4,101,255 6 0.48 
3,824,265 7 0.45 
3,015,125 8 0.35 
2,948,125 9 0.35 
2,935,485 10 0.34 

- 
- 
- 
- 

$ 44.765.81 1 5.24 % 

2000 Percent of 
Assessed Total Assessed 
Valuation Rank Valuation 

$ 7,585,626 3 1.39 % 
- 

7,894,045 2 1.45 
3,466,590 8 0.64 
4,737,430 4 0.87 
4,142,135 5 0.76 

- 

3,985,010 6 0.73 
- 
- 

9,963,540 I 1.83 
3,598,290 7 0.66 
2,549,3 10 9 0.47 
2,491,995 10 0.46 

$ 50.413.971 9.26 % 

Source: Douglas County Clerk 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Property Tax Levies and Collectio~ls (1) 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Percent of 
Current Delinquent 

Total Tax Current Tax Taxes Tax Total Tax 
Year L e w  Colleclious Collected Collections Collections 

Ratio of 
Total Tax 
Collection 
to Total 

Tax Levv 

Outstanding 
Delinquent 

Taxes 

Ratio of 
Delinquent 

Taxes to 
Total Tax 

Levy 

(1) General, Special Revenue and Debt Service Funds; does not include motor veliicle tax 



SCHEDULES OF DEBT CAPAClTY LNFORMATION 

The objective of the debt capacity information is to assist the reader in assessing the City of 
Lawrence's present debt burden and its ability to issue additional debt in the future. As a result, five 
tables of data are presented. Most of the tables contain ten years of data. Table 10 shows outstanding 
debt by type. Table 11 shows ratios of debt to assessed valuation and debt per capita. Table 12 lists 
direct and overlapping debt. Table 13 provides calculations of the legal debt margin. Table 14 shows 
the revenue bond coverage. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Year - 
2000 $ 
2001 
2002 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 
2007 
2008 
2009 

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities 
General General Total 

Obligation 
Bonds 

57;003,1 54 
55,962,449 
62,636,388 
72,638,936 
68,139;695 
66,122,8 13 
75,118,846 
80,240,45 1 
83,405,065 
77,590,899 

Notes Capital Revenue Obligation Notes Capital Primary 
Payable Leases Bonds Bonds Payable Leases - Government 

133,971 $ - $ 13,140,000 $ 7,196,846 $ 5,452.1 12 $ - $ 82,926,083 
107,161 11,855,000 6,652,55 1 22,l 12,277 96,689,438 
91,499 10,510,000 6,083,612 42,601,580 18,797 121,941,876 
75,285 9,475,000 5,486,064 49,470,892 137,146,177 
58,498 8,935,000 6,745,305 49,114,320 132,992,818 
41,118 25,910,000 10,957,187 46,970,878 150,001,996 
23,125 24,860,000 9,951,154 44,542,45 1 154,495,576 

4,496 43,465,000 6,534,549 42,447,047 172,69 1,543 
46,290,000 5,504,935 40,144,404 175,344,404 
54,990,000 4,839,101 37,758,506 175,178,506 

Note 1 - See the Demographic Statistics Table at Table 15 for personal income and population data 

Percentage 
of Personal 
Income (1) 

5.10 % 
3.70 
4.51 
4.88 
4.63 
4.86 
4.71 
4.97 
5.05 
5.05 

Per 
Capita (1) 

Note 2 - Details regarding the City's outstanding debt call be found in the notes to the financial statements 



CITY OF LAWmNCE, KANSAS 

Ratio of Net General Obligation Bonded Debt to Assessed 
Value and Net General Obligation Bonded Debt Per Capita 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Ratio of 
Net Bonded 

Gross Less Debt Net Debt to 
Assessed Bonded Service Bonded Assessed Net Bonded 

Year Population (1) Value (2) Debt (3) Fund Debt Value Per Capita 

( I )  Census Bureau estimates 2000; other years are Pla~~ning Department estimates or previous cerlsus figure 
(2) A~nounts expressed in tliousands. 
(3) City of  Lawrence only - excludes Lawrence Memorial Hospital aud bond anticipation notes. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Co~nputatio~i of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt 
General Obligation Bo~ids 

December 3 1,2009 

Unaudited 

Amount Net General 
Available in Obligation Percentage Amount 

Bond Issues Debt Service Bonded Debt Applicable Applicable 
Jurisdiction Outstanding Fund Outstanding to City to City 

Direct - City of Lawrence $ 82,430,000 $ 16,428,662 $ 66,001,338 100 % $ 66,001,338 

Overlapping: 
Douglas County 21,440,000 493,919 20,946,081 76 15,919,022 
Unified Schoo! District No. 497 XI ,745,000 4,776,805 76,868,195 89 68,501,694 

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with tlie geographic boundaries of 
the City. This schedule estimates the portion of the overlapping debt ofthose overlapping governments 
that is borne by the resident and businesses of the City. This process recognizes that, when co~isideri~ig 
the City's ability to issue and repay long-term debt, tlie entire debt burden borne by tlie reside~its and 
businesses should be taken into account. However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, 
and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of each overlappi~ig government. 

For debt repaid with property taxes, the percelitage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated usi~ig 
taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated by determining the portion of 
another governmental unit's taxable assessed value that is within the City's boundaries and dividing it by 
each unit's total taxable assessed value. This approach was also applied to the other debt of the 
overlapping govern~ne~ital units. 

Sources: Douglas County Budget Office aud the USD 497 School District Finance Office 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Coil~putatioi~ of Legal Debt Margill 

Last Ten F~scal Years 

Unaudited 

2000 - 2001 - 2002 - 2003 - 2004 - 2005 - 2006 - 2007 - 2008 - 2009 - 

Total Assessed Valuation 
of Taxable Properly S 608,166,259 $ 660,853,207 $ 696 271,456 S 743.219,62? $ 789,003,475 S 848,569,778 S 897,731,218 S 927,782,509 $ 935,616,472 $ 926,499,469 

Debt Lsrnlt Percent 
of Asscssed Value 30 00% 30 00% 30 00% 30 00% 30 00% 30 00%1 30 00% 30 00% 30 00% 30 00% 

Debt Lmlt 182,449,878 198,255,962 208,881,437 222,965,887 236,701,043 254,570,933 269,319,365 278,334,753 280,684,942 277,949,841 

Total net debt applicable to limit 
(includes temporary notes) 76,075,000 77,465,000 90,990,000 97,110,000 90,630,000 99,208,000 101,415,000 97,000,000 99,545,000 96,550,000 

Lcgal Debt Margin $ 106,374,878 $ - 120,790,962 $ 117,891,437 - $ - 125,855,887 $ - 146,071,043 S - 155,362,933 $ - 167,904;365 $ 181,334;753 S - 181,139,942 $ - 181,399,841 

Total Net Debt Applicable To Tile Limit 
As A Pcrccntage o f  Debt Limit 41.70% 39.07% 43.56% 43.55% 38.29% 38.97%~ 37.66% 34.85% 35.47% 34.7451 

Note Under Statc finance law, the City's outstand~ng qeneral obllgatlon debt should not execd 30 percent of 
the total assesscd property value 



Year 
Operating 
Revenue 

CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Revellue Bond Coverage - Water and Sewer Fund 

Last Tell Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Net Revenue 
Available 

Operating For Debt 
Expenses Sewice Principal Interest Total Coverage 



SCHEDULES OF DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION 

The objective of the demographic and economic infor~nation is to assist the reader in assessing 
the City ofLawrence's economic environment. As a result, two tables of data are presented. Table 15 
shows population, income, school enrollment, and the unemployment rate for the last ten years. Table 16 
lists the City's ten largest employers. 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Demographic Statistics 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Personal Per Capita Median School Unemployment 
Year Ponulation (1) Income (2) lncome(2) Enrollment (4) Rate (5) 

Data Sources: 
( 1 )  Planning Depart~nent estimates, except 2000 which is from the 2000 census 

(2) 2000-2003 data from 2000 census, 2004-2008 data from BEA. 2009 information was not yet available at the 
report date. 

(3) From U.S. Census Bureau 2000 census 
(4) Headcount Enrollment, Kansas Public Schools, Kansas State Department of Education. 
(5) Kansas Depart~nent of Hurnan Resources: Research and Analysis. 



Employer 
The University of Kansas 
Lawrence Public Schools 
Vangent 
City of Lawrence 
Lawrence Memorial Hospital 
Hallmark Card, h c .  
The World Company 
Ama1-r Garage Doors 
K-Mart Dist~ibution Center 
DCCCA 

Total 

ClTY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Principal Employers 

Current Year and Nine Years Ago 

Unaudited 

2009 2000 
Percentage of 

Total City 
Employees R& Employment 

9,872 1 16.25% 

2.36% 
2.06% 

Information Not Available 

Sources: Lawrence Chamber of Commerce 
Kansas Department of Human Resources 



SCHEDULES OF OPERATING INFORMATION 

The objective of the operating information is to provide a context for the City of Lawrence's 
operations. The data should help in evaluating the city's financial condition. As a result, t h ee  tables of 
data are presented. Table 17 shows the number of employees by function. Table 18 lists some 
significant operating indicators. Table 19 provides some capital asset information by function. 



FunctionIProeram 2ooo 2001 

General Government 54.70 57.70 

Public Safety 289.55 297.55 

Public Works 164.00 167.00 

Culture & Recreation 70.00 77.00 

Health 1.00 1.00 

Social Services 6.80 6.80 

Water & Sewer 106.00 106.00 

Total 692.05 713.05 
P 

Source: City of Lawrence Budget Document 

CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Full Time Equivalent E~nployees by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Operating I~idicators by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Fiscal Year 
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

Fire Protection 
Nuniber of Firefighters and Officers 140 140 133 137 137 137 13s 13s 139.5 134.5 
Nuniher of Fire Calls Answered 1,919 1,959 2.160 1,896 1,953 1,953 2,154 2,005 2,045 1,864 
N~mn~ber of Medical Calls Answered 5,705 6,612 6,380 6,225 6,700 6,700 6,810 6,858 7,592 7,539 
Number of Medical Transports 4,340 4,355 5,679 3,924 3,924 3,924 4,434 4,649 4,789 4,587 
Number of Inspections Conducted 2,706 2,685 8,011 5,240 5,240 5,240 5,963 7,065 7,260 6,662 

Police Proctection 
Number of Commissioned Police Officers 128 138 133 138 138 138 142 142 142 142 
Number of Full Time Civilians 24 25 34 34 33 34 34 34 34 35 
Number of Calls for Service 106,946 107,856 87,322 86,804 110,192 110,192 121,576 126,874 115,404 107,314 
Arrests Processed through County Jail 2,484 2,624 2,882 2,699 2,834 2,834 3,233 2,661 2,775 3,191 
Officer Issued Traffic Violations 18,475 19,675 16,460 18,327 24,008 24,008 39,348 40,572 35,543 34,681 
Officer Issued Parking Violatio~ls 15,019 15,519 15,748 13,417 14,421 14,421 96,739 94,890 92,355 99,091 

Sewerage System 
Number of Service Connectio~ls 24,400 24,820 28,252 28,252 29,515 29,515 31,499 32,000 32,741 33,063 
Actual Daily Average of Treatment in Mlllion Gallons D 8.9 8.9 9.2 9.2 12.5 12.5 10.5 10.6 11.5 10.5 

Water System 
Number of Service Connections 27,500 27,850 29,115 28,895 29,770 29,770 32,142 32,522 32,741 33,063 
Daily Average Consumption in Mi l l io~~  Gallons 11.6 11.6 12.6 13 13 13 12.2 11.4 10.4 9.5 
Maximum Daily Capacity of Plant iu Million Gallo~ls 27.5 27.5 31.5 31.5 32.5 32.5 32.5 32.5 36.5 36.5 

Sources: Various government departments 



Public Works 
Miles of Streets 

Culture and Recreation 
Recreation Centers 
Parks 
Park Acreage 
Tennis Courts 

Fire Protection 
Number of Stations 

Policc Practeetion 
Number of SLatioss 
Number of Patrol Units 

Serverage System 
Milcs ofsanitary Scwers 
Number of Treatment Plants 
Number of Lifl Stalions 

Wate r  Systcm 
Number of Water Plants 
Miles of Water Mains 
Numbcr of City owned Fire Ilydrants 

Libraries 
Public Libraries 
Number ofvolumes (approximately) 

Facilities and Services Not Included in the ltcportisg Entity: 
Education 

Numbcr of Public Elementary Schools 
Number of Public Elementary School Instructors 
Number of Public Secondary Schools 
Number of I'ublic Secondary School Instructors 
Number of Universities 

Hospitnls 
Number of Hospitals 
Numbcr of Patient Beds 

CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

Capital Asset Statistics by Function 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Unaudited 

Fiscal Year 
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

Sources: Various government departrncnts 
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INDEPENDEhT ALDI_TOR'S RE-pQR_T ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FlhANClAL REPORT.NG 
A-hQQN COMPLIANCE AND OThER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUD T OF F.N.ANC_I&C 

STATEMEhTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMEhT AL.QDIN.G..STANDARDS_: - . . . . . . - . . 

Mayor and City Commissioners 
City of Lawrence, Kansas 

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the 
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information 
of the City of Lawrence. Kansas (the City) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2009, which collectively 
comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2010. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in "Government Auditing Standards." issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Other auditors audited the financial statements of the Lawrence 
Memorial Hospital and the Lawrence-Douglas County Housing Authority as described in our report on the City's 
financial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control over 
financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. The 
financial statements of the Lawrence Public Library were not audited in accordance with "Government Auditing 
Standards." 

Internal Control Over Financial Re~ort inq 
In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Lawrence, Kansas' internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal 
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's 
internal control over financial reporting. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not 
be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial 
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined 
above. 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under "Government Auditing 
Standards." 

However, we noted certain other matters that we have reported to management in a separate letter dated April 
30, 2010. 

This report is intended solely for the information of the mayor, city commission, and other members of 
management and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

April 30, 2010 
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IhDEPENDEhT AUD TOR'S REPORT ON COMPLlANCE WITH REQ JI.RNN.TS_ 
APPL C A B L E ~ A C ~  MAJOR PR0GRA.M AhD ON IhTERNAL CONNTEQLQIVEER_ 

C0MPLlAN.CE IN ACCORDANCE WlTd OMB CIRCLLAR A - . l a  . -  

Mayor and City Commissioners 
City of Lawrence, Kansas 

Com~liance 
We have audited the compliance of the City of Lawrence, Kansas (the City), with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the "U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance 
Supplement" that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2009. 
Major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying Schedule of 
Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants 
applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in "Government Auditing Standards", 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the City's compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures, as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City's 
compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City complied, in all material respects, with the requirements referred to above that are 
applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended December 31. 2009. 

Internal Control Over Com~liance 
The management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over 
compliance with requirements of law, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal programs. In 
planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over compliance with the 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our 
auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal 
control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance. 



A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected, on a timely basis. 

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that 
might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in 
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended for the information and use of the mayor, city commission and other members of 
management of the City of Lawrence, Kansas, the state of Kansas and federal awarding agencies and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those specified parties. 

April 30, 2010 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

December 31,2009 

Federal 
Federal Grantor Agency CFDA G n n t  Program 

Parr.Through Grantor i  Program Name Number Number 

U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development 

Direct Assistance 

Comrnunty Development BlackGianVEntiuenlentGrants 14218 B09~MC-20.0006 

Communty Development BlockGranVEntiuementGiants 14253 B09~MY-20-0006 

Home - nvesbnent Paitnerrhps Program 

Home-InvesbneniPaitnershps Program 

Home-lnvesbnent Paitnershps Program 

Emergency Sheller Grant 14231 ESG~FFY2009 

Total U.S. Department of Housing and Urban D~vs lopment  

U. S. Department of Transportation 

Federal Transporation Administration 

Federal Trans11 Formula Grant 

Federal Transit Formula Grant 

Federal Trans11 Formula Grant 

Federal Transit Formula Grant 

FAAIAlrpoll Improvement PralectGrantjq 

KS Department of Transportation 

Comprehensve Transportatlan Pannng Grant 

Transportation Enhancements 

state and Communb Hghway Safety (STEP] 

Total Department of Tranrpollation 

US. Department of Justice 

Direcl Ass is t i in~e 

Byine ARRA EUDL 16738~R 2009~DJ-BX-1275 

KS Office of the Governor 

Edward Byrne Memorial Jui tce Assistance (JAG) Giant 16.738 19-JAG~09 

iota1 Department of Justice 

T o t a l  F e d e r a l  F i n a n c i a l  A w a r d s  E x p e n d i t u r e s  

I. General - This schedule presents the expenditures o i  ail federal fnancia assstance program programs of the Ci@ of Lawrence 
All expendlures of federal financial assistance recetved directly hom federal agenctes as weil as iederalflnanctai m k t a n c e  
passed ihrough olher government agencies is included on VIs schedule. 

Expenditures 

2. Basis of Accounting - Ths schedule s presented in accordance w~th  generally accepted accountng prncpes 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
Year Ended December 31,2009 

Section I -Summary of Auditor's Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes - X No 

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses? Yes X None reported 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs: 

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No 

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be 
material weaknesses? Yes X None reported 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in 
accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-I 33? Yes X No 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDA Number(s) 

14.218 and 14.253 
14.239 

Name of Federal Proqram or Cluster 

CDBG - Entitlement Grants Cluster 
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish behnreen type A and type B 
programs: $300,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X Yes No 



CITY OF LAWRENCE, KANSAS 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS, CONTINUED 
Year Ended December 31,2009 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

None Noted 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

Current Year Findinq 

None Noted 

Prior Year Finding 

None Noted 


